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Lifestyle China Group Limited (“Lifestyle China” or together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an established retail venue operator based in
the PRC. The Group has been operating two “lifestyle” department stores
under the Jiuguang brand in Shanghai and Suzhou respectively. The latest
addition to its portfolio is the Shanghai Jiuguang Center, comprising a
seven-storey shopping mall and two office towers, situated also in the
Jing'an District, Shanghai. Opened in November 2021, the shopping mall
houses the Group's second Jiuguang department store in Shanghai and
other complementary facilities including restaurants, beauty salons and
fitness centers. The office towers will be leased out for generating rental
income to the Group.

Targeting the mid-range to upper-end consumer market in China, the
Group's Shanghai Jiuguang Center and Jiuguang department stores have
differentiated themselves with their appealing product and brand
portfolios and top-notch one-stop shopping experiences. The Group is
committed to optimizing its product mix and enhancing its customer
services with a view to satisfy the diverse needs of local consumers in terms
of shopping, leisure and lifestyle.

In addition to operating its own retailing venues, the Group has been
maintaining a strategic equity interest in the Beiren Group, a leading
retailing group based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, PRC. Business of
the Beiren Group includes operating department stores, supermarkets,
electrical appliances, gold and jewelry and outlet mall. The business
performance of the Beiren Group is important to the Group and the share
of results by the Group in the Beiren Group represents a significant portion
of the results of the Group.
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Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2] %)8
Chairman £ /&

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2021 saw recovery in most economies across the globe from the
COVID-19 pandemic low and China, the world’s second largest economy,
is of no exception and continued to record strong growth in its economy
especially during the first half of the year, before the growth momentum
somewhat slowed in the second half of the year. Nevertheless, the retailing
environment in China during the year was still fraught with operational
challenges and market instability that the Group forged ahead with the
implementation of a series of multifaceted strategies that were focused on
the continuous optimization of store operations in a bid to further bolster
the Group's competitiveness.

With the Group's strategic efforts and in spite of the difficult operating
environment, the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021
grew 15.6% year-on-year to RMB1,299.7 million and also surpassed the
pre-pandemic level of RMB1,204.1 million in 2019.,Profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year amounted to RMB143.4 million, a
drop of 32.6% when compared with RMB212.7 million recorded in 2020.
The board of directors has resolved not to declare any dividend for the
year.

While the Group’s two well-established department stores, Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, outperformed the general retailing
market and recorded sales growth of approximately 15.0% and 17.9%
respectively for the year, the launch of the retail mall of the Group's
Shanghai Jiuguang Center, a commercial complex comprising the retail
mall and two office blocks, is another cause for optimism. Opened in
Shanghai in late November, the retail mall not only provides a wide range
of retailers and merchandises to meeting the diverse needs of local
consumers as a shopping venue, the complex also acts as a lifestyle and
community hub where visitors can meet and unwind. With two impressive
Shanghai-based shopping complexes under its belt, it is expected that the
Group's market presence in the city will further increase.
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To enrich the lifestyle experiences for customers visiting its stores, the
Group added during the year unconventional retailers and service
providers such as gyms and medical aesthetics centers to its existing
department stores and this move has resulted in a higher number of
repeated visits as well as increased spending in other surrounding shops.
To increase and deepen customer engagement, the Group continued to
embrace digitalization of its retail management system and that different
social media platforms including live streaming are being utilized to drive
foot traffic to its department stores. While the constant evolution and
diversification of consumption patterns and consumer behavior remains a
challenge to retailers, we believe there are enormous opportunities arising
from the deeper integration of online and offline sales platforms.

In order to remain competitive and promote sustainable growth amid the
challenging external environment, the Group will continue to implement
prudent strategies by expanding its product portfolio and improve its
customer services in an effort to uphold its reputation and cater to its
customers’ expectations. The Group will continue to leverage Jiuguang's
strong brand recognition and to position as a department store chain that
serves the sophisticated needs of China’s middle class.

Separately, the Group has started the leasing process to recruit tenants for
the two office blocks of the Shanghai Jiuguang Center, which will bring to
the Group stable rental income stream in the future. With the location
advantage, the two office blocks are set to become one of Shanghai’s
most desirable business locations and will further enhance the image of
the Group's Shanghai Jiuguang Centre and its overall presence in the city.

Looking ahead, China’s economy will continue to face challenges resulted
from the ongoing geopolitical and trade tensions and the continued
sporadic outbreaks of COVID-19. As such, the government is likely to
deploy various fiscal and monetary policies to boosting the country's
economic development with an aim to achieving the 5.5% GDP growth
target for 2022, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the health
of China'’s retail sector going forward. We are committed to strengthening
our position as a leading lifestyle retailer serving the sophisticated needs
of China’s middle-class and are confident that, given our enhanced
business strategies and extensive industry experience, we can achieve a
stable performance despite the difficult operating environment.

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my gratitude to
our management team and staff for their considerable efforts and
continued contributions to the Group's development. The dedication they
have shown, despite facing additional pressure as a result of the epidemic,
has been a pillar of strength for the Group over the past year. Finally, on
behalf of the Group, | would also like to thank our customers, business
partners and shareholders for their unswerving support.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
18 March 2022
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Market Overview

The global economy in 2021 generally saw a rebound from the bottom that
was caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. However, economic situation
remained complex and marred by uncertainty with the emergence of new
COVID-19 variants and ongoing political tensions between the US and
China that has set the stage for a challenging global economic
environment. In China, notwithstanding the resurgence of COVID-19
infections in certain parts of the country in the second half of the year that
cooled the economy with the gross domestic product (“GDP") grew only
4.9% and 4.0% in the third and fourth quarters respectively, the strong
rebound in economic growth in the first half of the year brought about by
resumption of normal economic activities has resulted a 8.1% growth in the
country’s GDP to approximately RMB114.37 trillion for the year 2021.

China's GDP growth also led to a 12.5% growth in the country’s total retail
sales of consumer goods although the growth momentum started to slow
from August onwards with the year-on-year growth rate dropped to a low
of 1.7% in December. In the same month, the overall consumer price index
("CPI") edged down by 0.3% from November, bringing down the inflation
rate for the whole year to a moderate increase of 0.9% from the preceding
year.

Financial Review

Faced with a challenging market environment, the Group responded by
adopting a series of multifaceted strategies which included optimizing its
product mix, continuing to leverage its well-established brand equity and
promoting the new retail business to give full play to the complementary
advantages of online and offline retailing. Most noteworthy is the opening
of the Group's Shanghai Jiuguang Center in Daning in late November
which will not only provide additional revenue to the Group but also bring
synergies to the Group's retail business with its already well-established
Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang department stores.
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Revenue and Sales Proceeds

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue increased
15.6% to reach RMB1,299.7 million, compared with the RMB1,124.0 million
recorded in 2020 and surpassed the pre-pandemic level of RMB1,204.1
million recorded in 2019. The increase was primarily a result of the Group's
effective marketing strategies which successfully drove sales at the two
Jiuguang stores, particularly in the first half of 2021, as well as the
contribution from the newly-opened Shanghai Jiuguang Center since late
November. Sales performance at the two stores continued to see
improvement following the addition of more mid-range and high-end
products from internationally renowned brands during the year. The total
sales proceeds of the Group grew by 17.3% year-on-year to RMB3,482.9
million in 2021, up from RMB2,968.2 million in 2020. If excluding the
contribution of approximately RMB53.5 million from the newly-opened
Shanghai Jiuguang Center, aggregate sales proceeds from the existing
stores increased 15.5% to RMB3,429.4 million.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rate

The Group's gross profit amounted to RMB790.4 million for the year, an
increase of 16.0% from RMB681.4 million in the previous year. The gross
profit margin as a percentage of total sales proceeds was approximately
22.7%, compared with 23.0% in 2020. Meanwhile, the Group's gross profit
margin as a percentage of revenue remained stable at 60.8% as compared
to 60.6% last year. The average concessionaire rate dropped slightly to
approximately 20.6% from last year's 21.0%.

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to RMB143.4 million, as compared to
RMB212.7 million in 2020. The decrease in profit was mainly due to
increase in selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses,
which was a result of the inclusion of the normal operating and pre-
opening fitting and decoration expenses, as well as an one-off opening
expenses of RMB34.8 million of the Shanghai Jiuguang Center.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group's aggregate selling and distribution costs grew 28.1% to
RMB523.7 million in 2021 from RMB408.8 million in 2020. The increase was
mainly attributable to (i) increase in operating expenses of RMB33.2 million
amid sales growth; (ii) increase in depreciation and amortization charges of
RMB21.1 million, mainly from the Shanghai Jiuguang Center; and (iii) an
approximately RMB36.6 million of counter fitting and decoration costs for
the brand partners as incentives for them to operate in the Group's
Shanghai Jiuguang Center. The Group's aggregate selling and distribution
expenses as a percentage of total sales proceeds increased to
approximately 15.0% for the year, compared with 13.8% in 2020 as initial
sales from the newly-opened Shanghai Jiuguang Center was not in
proportion to its operating expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B & 24 (&)

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general administrative expenses surged 52.7% to
approximately RMB238.3 million from RMB156.1 million recorded in 2020.
The increase was mainly attributable to (i) additional depreciation charge
of approximately RMB11.8 million and a one-off store grand-opening
expense of RMB34.8 million with respect to the Shanghai Jiuguang Center;
and (i) increase in staff costs of approximately RMB32.0 million.

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) increased by 22.9% to
approximately RMB191.3 million from RMB155.6 million in 2020. The
increase was mainly attributable to (i) additional staff costs incurred for the
operation of the Shanghai Jiuguang Center; (i) increase in social security
contributions in the absence of relief measures implemented by the
government last year; and (iii) payment of a one-off compensation of
RMB6.2 million for the dismissed staff after outsourcing the Freshmart
supermarket operation at Suzhou store and optimizing checkout process
for the concessionaire counters. Notwithstanding additional headcount
was required for the operation of the Shanghai Jiuguang Center, the total
number of full-time staff employed by the Group as at 31 December 2021
was 1,167, only a small increase from 1,159 as at 31 December 2020 as the
additional headcount was off-set by the number of staff being made
redundant.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses, which mainly comprises management
fees, third-party payment platform charges and other miscellaneous
income received from the counters/tenants, other sundry income and
exchange gains/losses, recorded an increase of 26.3% to RMB130.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was primarily
attributable to (i) rise in management fee income and third-party payment
platform charges from counters amid sales growth; and (ii) a gain on lease
modification of RMB17.0 million (2020 : RMB15.3 million) resulting from a
change in the lease term in respect of the tenancy for the Freshmart
supermarket in Changning, Shanghai.

Interest and Investment Income

The Group's income from interest and investments decreased by 6.4% to
RMB51.3 million in 2021 from RMB54.8 million in 2020. The drop was
mainly due to a decrease in investment income from the Group's
structured deposits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B 51 i & 247 (&)

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs mainly consisted of interest incurred on bank
borrowings. Total finance costs and interest incurred for the year before
capitalization, was approximately RMB124.9 million (2020 : RMB133.8
million) and the slight decrease was mainly due to a drop in the finance
charge from lease liabilities following the lease modification relating to the
lease for the Freshmart in Changning, Shanghai. Finance costs charged to
the profit and loss account amounted to RMB27.9 million (2020 : RMB25.4
million) comprised mainly an approximately RMB19.0 million (2020 :

RMB25.4 million) of finance charge in respect of lease liabilities and an
approximately RMB8.9 million of bank loan interest expenses which could
no longer be capitalized following opening of the Shanghai Jiuguang
Center.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's adjusted EBITDA for the year increased to RMB326.4 million
from RMB313.8 million recorded last year, mainly attributable to the sales
growth. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net debt (defined as cash
and cash equivalents and amount due from associates less total bank
borrowings, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries
and amount due to a joint venture) improved slightly to approximately
RMB444.8 million from RMB457.8 million as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately RMB1,858.2 million (2020 : RMB1,906.9 million), of which
RMB9.3 million was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and kept in Hong
Kong. The remaining cash balance was kept in mainland China, of which
approximately 4.2% was denominated in United States dollars and the
remaining 95.8% in Renminbi. The decrease in cash at banks, as compared
with that at 31 December 2020, was mainly a result of the RMB60 million
repayment of bank loan during the year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding secured bank loans
amounted to RMB2,340 million (2020 : RMB2,400 million) and this bank
loan facility bears interest calculated with reference to benchmark lending
rates of the People’s Bank of China. The Group’s debt to equity ratio
(defined as bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company) improved to 25.1% as at the end of the year from 26.1% a
year earlier. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no unutilized banking
facility available (2020 : same).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B & 24 (&)

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries operating in
the PRC is Renminbi, in which majority of the Group's transactions are
denominated. As described in the “Liquidity and Financial Resources”
section above, a small portion of the Group’s monetary assets are
denominated in foreign currencies, namely Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars. Given the fact that the majority of the Group's revenue and
expenses, as well as its borrowings and capital expenditures, are
denominated in Renminbi, and the Hong Kong dollar cash balance kept in
Hong Kong is for settling operating expenses outside of mainland China,
the Group currently does not need a comprehensive foreign currency
hedging policy. Management will, however, monitor the Group's foreign
currency exposure and will consider taking appropriate measures to
mitigate any significant potential foreign currency risk should the need
arise.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant and
equipment in the PRC with a book value of approximately RMB3,936
million (2020 : RMB3,382 million); (ii) right-of-use assets in the PRC with a
book value of approximately RMB1,671 million (2020 : RMB1,721 million);
and (iii) investment property in the PRC with a book value of approximately
RMB1,292 million (2020 : property under development of RMB1,346
million) were pledged to secure bank loan facilities of approximately
RMB2,340 million (2020 : RMB2,400 million) for development of the
Shanghai Jiuguang Center, which comprises both property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
There were no significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals
during the year.

Review of Operations

Faced with a competitive retailing market and operation challenges,
including related travel restrictions resulting from the ongoing pandemic,
the Group prioritized the expansion of its retail portfolio and
strengthening of its brand equity with an aim to leverage its
competitiveness and strengthen customer loyalty. The Group's brand
equity was further enhanced by the launch of the Group’s Shanghai
Jiuguang Center in late November, putting the Group in a better position
to capture market opportunities and provide best in class customer
experience in Shanghai. The Group also continued to take advantage of
the huge demand from local middle and upper-class customers in
Shanghai and Suzhou by introducing a number of new mid-range and
high-end products of internationally renowned brands into the Group's
department stores, further enhancing its brand image and product mix and
ultimately driving sales growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B 51 i & 247 (&)

The Group also made available from time to time non-traditional retail
names to enrich its product offerings in a bid to further deepening
customer engagement and driving foot traffic with increased sales ticket
size. These retailers proved to be successful in lifting the sales of other
shops within our stores as a result of improved foot traffic. Meanwhile, to
better serve young and affluent middle-class customers in the increasingly
popular e-commerce market, the Group made effective use of mobile
internet technology in its marketing and promotion activities, including live
streaming as well as utilizing popular social media platforms.

Shanghai Jiuguang Center

Situated in a prime location close to the Shanghai Circus World Station
alongside the Shanghai Metro Line 1, the Group’s Shanghai Jiuguang
Center provides a gross floor area of approximately 347,000 square
meters, comprising two office towers and a seven-storey retail complex.
The retail complex was grand-opened on 27 November 2021 and greeted
nearly 220,000 visitors in its first day of operation. The retail complex is
home to a portfolio of approximately 400 retailers covering the diverse
needs of local consumers. In addition to offering a variety of familiar global
brands and numerous domestic favorites, the retail complex also houses
restaurants, supermarkets, beauty salons and fitness centers, enabling it
not only serve as a shopping venue but also a leisure and lifestyle hub. The
initial response from the customers has been encouraging and during the
thirty-plus business days to the end of the year following its opening in late
November, the Shanghai Jiuguang Center recorded daily average footfall
of approximately 112,000 visitors.

Shanghai Jiuguang

Despite sporadic outbreaks of COVID-19 noted in the city during the year,
Shanghai Jiuguang continued to see an improvement in its business,
thanks to the increased application of online marketing as well as the
various on-site facilities introduced with an aim to enhancing customers
shopping experiences. In addition to the introduction of a fitness center to
meet the demand of health-conscious consumers, the Group also
organized various classes for customers including make-up class, dance
and floral arranging class etc. These activities not only proved to be an
effective way of driving footfall into the store, but also increased
opportunities for participants to visit the shops nearby. Registration for
these classes is done online through mobile internet-enabled applications,
and was therefore used also as part of the Group’s omni-channel
marketing strategy, encouraging online customers to spend at the Group's
physical store.

The store’s total sale proceeds for the year amounted to RMB2,292.7
million, an increase of 15.0% over that in 2020. Sales performance of
cosmetic products and accessories was particularly outstanding, with a
growth of more than 20.0% when compared with the previous year.
Average daily footfall and stay-and-buy ratio increased 10.1% to
approximately 41,000 visitors and 4.6 percentage points to 47.1%
respectively. However, average ticket size saw a 2.9% year-on-year
decrease to RMB432. The average concessionaire rate collected by the
store remained stable at around 23.4%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B & 24 (&)

Suzhou Jiuguang

Suzhou Jiuguang continued to see strong recovery in its business,
predominantly due to its customer base being largely local citizens and it is
therefore less dependent on cross-city visitors and travellers. On the
contrary, affluent locals who were unable to travel due to continued travel
restrictions ended up spending on luxury items such as jewellery and
watches locally. In a bid to enhance its retail portfolio to drive footfall,
tenant-mix refinements were carried out during the year which included
the introduction of a medical aesthetics center and a sporting goods
brand.

Total sale proceeds for the year in Suzhou store amounted to RMB1,092.9
million, an increase of 17.9% from 2020. Similar to the Shanghai Jiuguang
store, sales of cosmetics products and accessories recorded a remarkable
growth of 36.5%. Average daily traffic footfall and average ticket size rose
9.6% to around 14,000 visitors and 15.7% to RMB551 respectively.
Nonetheless, stay-and-buy ratio was slightly down by 2.5 percentage
points to 53.1%, with the average concessionaire rate collected by the
store edged lower to 16.0% from 16.8% in the preceding year as low
commission rate product categories such as jewellery and watches
outperformed during the year.

Dalian and Shenyang Property

The Group's commercial properties in Dalian and Shenyang remained
vacant during the year and continued to suffer cash outflows of
approximately RMB17.9 million for the general upkeep and maintenance
costs of these properties.

Standalone Freshmart Operation

Freshmart sells high-quality food and confectionery products and is a
standalone operation of the Group at a rented premise in Changning,
Shanghai. To improve sales efficiency, the Group continued to try
enhancing concessionaire arrangements and reducing the portion of direct
sales. However, due to keen competition, the store recorded a slight
decrease of 3.3% in sales proceeds in 2021. During the year, the Group
continued to negotiate with the landlord for a modification of the lease
term and realized a gain on such modification amounted to RMB17 million
(2020 : RMB15.3 million).

Investments in Associates

Beiren Group, a well-established Shijiazhuang-based retail group in which
the Group holds a strategic equity interest, continued to deliver stable
business performance during the year. Notwithstanding the continual
outbreaks of COVID-19 in the city during the year, Beiren Group managed
to achieve sales levels similar to the previous year. Net profit (after share of
non-controlling interests) attributable to the Group increased 6.1% to
RMB141.5 million in 2021, compared with RMB133.3 million recorded in
2020. The share of profit from this investment remained significant and
accounted for more than 90% of the profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B 51 i & 247 (&)

As further disclosed on pages 128 to 130 under section "Beiren Group” in
note 17 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group
made Full Impairment against the full amount of Trade Receivable
balances due by the Debtors during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group understood from the management of the Beiren Group that
there has not been any progress made in terms of recovering the
outstanding Trade Receivables nor obtaining further financial information
related to the Debtors and the Guarantor. As at 31 December 2021 and
based on information then available, the Group considered the Full
Impairment against the outstanding Trade Receivables of the Debtors
made in the year 2019 remained the best estimate.

The Group followed up during the year the Company’s plan to address the
Qualified Opinion as set out in details in the supplemental announcement
dated 5 May 2020 whereby quarterly contacts were made by our Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO") with management of the Beiren Group to obtain
updates on the progress regarding the legal actions against the Debtors
and the criminal case against the Guarantor. Due to travel restriction
induced by the COVID-19 pandemic throughout the year, contacts with
management of the Beiren Group made during the year could only be
conducted through telephone and no physical meetings were managed to
be arranged and held.

As the Group only holds a non-controlling interest in the Beiren Group and
therefore could only rely on management of the Beiren Group to (i) take
appropriate and necessary actions to recover the trade receivables from
the Debtors and/or the Guarantor; and (i) obtain up-to-date and relevant
information, including but not limited to financial information and financial
conditions of the Debtors and the Guarantor, that could be pursued to
settle the outstanding trade receivables, as well as the progress, if any, of
the legal proceedings taken against the Debtors and/or the Guarantor.
The contacts made by the Group’s CFO with management of the Beiren
Group during the year however failed to obtain any updated information
about the legal actions against the Debtors and/or Guarantor as all the
assets, records and information of the Debtors and/or Guarantor are still
under the custody of the local authority in the PRC and management of the
Beiren Group did not receive any concrete reply from the authority
regarding progress of the legal cases. As such, no relevant information of
the Debtors and/or Guarantor as required by the auditors could be
obtained for the purpose of resolving the Qualified Opinion.

The Board understands that the Group, with only a non-controlling interest
in the Beiren Group, could only rely on management of the Beiren Group
to take the necessary legal actions and to monitor the progress through
regular contact with the relevant authorities. The Board also understands
the difficulties faced by management of the Beiren Group in obtaining
updated information without the cooperation of the relevant authorities in
the PRC. In light of the above and although there has not been any
progress made in obtaining the latest information of the Debtors and/or
Guarantor as requested by the auditor, the Board is of the view that the
actions adopted by the Group and management of the Beiren Group
represent the most appropriate actions under the circumstances.
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As almost all the key employees of the Debtors or companies owned by
the Guarantor as well as the Guarantor are understood to be, as of the
date of this submission, still being detained by the local authority, no
progress could be made in terms of obtaining further information of the
Debtors and/or the Guarantor. Until the time management of the Beiren
Group has access to the Guarantor and/or any of his key staff and the
criminal case against the Guarantor has any meaningful progress or
conclusion by the local authority, the Company does not expect there
would be any progress regarding the legal actions taken by the Beiren
Group against the Debtors nor any of the trade receivables could be
recovered from the Debtors. In view of the above, the Company is not in a
position to come up with any other realistic and practicable actions or a
concrete timetable for addressing or removing the Qualified Opinion for
the time being.

The Board and the audit committee fully understand that the Group, being
a non-controlling shareholder of the Beiren Group could only rely on
management of the Beiren Group to obtain the necessary relevant
information and updates as required by the auditor and hence do share
the view that the actions taken so far by the Group and management of
the Beiren Group are the most appropriate and practicable in the
circumstances. The Board and the audit committee also concur that given
the circumstances there is currently no other realistic and practicable
actions or any concrete timetable available for addressing or removing the
audit modification.

The auditor noted the actions taken and the difficulties faced by the
Company and management of the Beiren Group over the past years in
obtaining the information of the Debtors/Guarantor while the Guarantor
and most of his key staff are being detained and all assets owned by the
Guarantor have been seized by the local authority. The auditor also
understands the Company’s plan to continue relying on management of
the Beiren Group in obtaining the relevant information of the Debtor/
Guarantor. However, until the Company is able to provide the auditor with
adequate evidence with respect to the financial conditions of the Debtors/
Guarantor and details of other assets of the Guarantor, the auditor will not
be able to assess whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence they
consider necessary has been obtained. Accordingly, the auditor is not in a
position, based on their understanding of the Company’s planned actions
to be taken, to form a view as to whether the Company will be able to
provide such relevant information to enable them to assess and consider
removing the Qualified Opinion in the next financial year.

The Group will make continuous efforts to further explore with
management of the Beiren Group options in obtaining relevant
information of the Debtors, including but not limited to financial
information and financial conditions of the Debtors and the Guarantor that
could be pursued to settle the outstanding Trade Receivables.
Furthermore, the Group will continue to make regular contact with
management of the Beiren Group to monitor the development of the
situation and to assess the possibility of recovering the outstanding Trade
Receivables from the Debtors and will discuss the same with the auditor to
address the issue in due course.
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Outlook and Plan

Looking ahead, with the COVID-19 pandemic showing no signs of abating
and the escalating geopolitical tensions, the external environment is set to
remain complex and uncertain. While China’s economy will continue to
face potential hardships due to ongoing trade tensions and continued
sporadic outbreaks of COVID-19, the government is likely to deploy
various fiscal and monetary policies to boosting the country’s economic
development with an aim to achieving the 5.5% GDP growth target for
2022. In view of this, the Group remains cautiously optimistic that China’s
economy will remain relatively strong, keeping consumer confidence at a
relatively stable level.

In order to capture business opportunities arising from the rapidly
changing consumption patterns, the Group will continue to position itself
as a department store chain serving the sophisticated needs of China’s
middle class and high-spending younger generation. We will remain
committed to optimizing product mix and enhancing customer services so
as to further strengthen the brand equity of the Jiuguang brand and
continue to provide best in class shopping experiences that meet the
customers’ expectations.

The Group is also set to strengthen the integration of its online and offline
retail experience through leveraging on social media platforms and mobile
internet technology. We will continue to making use of our retail
management system to understand consumer behavior and make timely
adjustments to our product assortment in order to better serve our
customers. The Group also plans to actively explore new marketing
initiatives and utilize engaging marketing campaigns which feature
livestreaming, short video clips and other emerging media with an aim to
broaden its customer base and increase customer loyalty.

Separately, the leasing work to recruit tenants for the two office blocks of
the Shanghai Jiuguang Center have been commenced. Benefitting from
being next to the metro station and with its proximity to the retail
complex, the office blocks are set to becoming the Group’s new source of
income growth.

With the expected government supportive policies in the near term,
China’s retail sector and the business operations of the Group are
expected to remain healthy. Leveraging the strong brand equity of the
Jiuguang brand and dedicated management team, the Group is poised to
explore potential investment opportunities with the overall aim of
achieving long-term growth and providing returns to its shareholders.
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Reporting Scope
The Board of Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Group”) believes that the
business of the Group is closely linked to the environment and society in

various aspects, and we are dedicated to disclosing and reporting matters

that we believe are relevant and important to the Group's mission.

Business philosophy

As a premier department store operator, we regard integrity as our core

value and we believe that the Group's presence and prosperity are

interdependent and interconnected with the society and we adhere to the

following philosophies in conducting our business:
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Customers: our mission is to operate one-stop department stores, so
that our customers can enjoy a pleasant shopping experience.

Employees: our employees are our most precious asset and we treat
them with faimess and respect and maintain a working environment
to unleash their full potentials.

Business partners: we do business with our partners with integrity
and fairness and in a responsible manner. At the same time, we
encourage our business partners to embrace high standards of
corporate responsibility similar to those of ours.

Community: we are dedicated to unremittingly serve and contribute
to the communities in which our business is operated.

Shareholders: we endeavour to create sustainable returns to our
shareholders.
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Governance Structure

The Board is the highest governing body of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating the management objectives, strategies, priorities and goals of
the Group in relation to Environment, Social and Governance ("ESG")
aspects and is also in charge of supervising their implementation.

The ESG Committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and senior members from various operating aspects, and is responsible for
the formulation, implementation and daily governance of the overall ESG
strategies of the Group.

According to the overall ESG strategies of the Group, members of the ESG
Committee are responsible for the specific formulation and
implementation of the relevant ESG objectives in relation to various
operating aspects as well as the collecting and reporting of the relevant
information. It is also the responsibility of the members to submit the
relevant performance and annual reports in relation to the ESG issues to
the Board on a regular basis. They also endeavour to constantly improve
the reporting mechanism in relation to the ESG issues, which will allow the
Board to be fully aware of the initiatives in relation to the ESG issues of
various operating aspects of the Group and their subsequent
implementation and follow-up progress, as well as the relevant
governance system and measures in relation to the potential risks of the
ESG issues of the Group.

To implement strategies in relation to the ESG issues more effectively and
monitor the relevant possible ESG-related risks, the ESG Committee will
hold meetings on a regular or irregular basis depending on the situation to
investigate, formulate and adjust the relevant strategies. Regular meeting
will be held with sub-units under the ESG Committee to follow-up on the
implementation of ESG targets on the relevant policies and standards in
relation to various operating aspects of the Group. Meanwhile, the ESG
Committee will also collaborate with the relevant departments such as the
legal and audit departments timely to assess the risks, to which the Group
may be exposed and formulate corresponding responsive and control
measures.

Being the final stage on implementing strategies in relation to ESG issues,
the ESG Committee will continuously acquaint themselves with the trends
and changes of development in relation to the ESG issues, striving to
promote an effective incorporation of the strategies in relation to the ESG
issues of the Group into the corporate’s daily decision making and
business operation. It is the belief of the Group that under the fully
collaboration of various operating departments, the efforts made by the
Group will strenuously ensure the Group having a high level of corporate
responsibility standard in relation to the ESG issues.
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Environment

Emissions

While creating social and economic value with an aim to minimising the
impact of our business on the environment, the Group dedicates our
efforts to establishing sustainable development and acting as a
responsible corporation in discharging our social responsibilities. To
achieve these objectives, we strive to take appropriate measures to ensure
that correct decisions and executions are made at all levels of our
operations.

The primary sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group include
electricity, water and natural gas consumption. Hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes mainly come from sewage, kitchen waste,
construction and household wastes. The Group focuses on measuring and
reporting carbon reduction results and promoting waste reduction at
source. In this connection, the Group strictly complies with relevant
legislative requirements on sewage and waste disposal, and appoint
government approved professional firms to carry out recycling treatment,
so as to implement effective environmental management system
standards. Regular inspections on the Group's operations are conducted
by relevant government environmental protection authorities. Annual
government inspection on all relevant sewage and waste disposal for the
financial year 2021 was passed, which complied with government
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standards.
To contribute to environmentally sustainable development, the Group is committed to:
REEBBAORUTTBH K RREIFEEZERMLEER

1. eliminating resources wasting misconduct 1. HBRBERNTR

2. minimising use of scarce resources and energy 2. RAEHWHRERKEERMER

3. adopting the most effective environmentally friendly operating 3. HRE&ABRHIRFE SR
solutions ol

4. endeavouring to promote environmental protection awareness 4. BHIREERERAEDR

5.  setting sustainable and measurable environmental protection 5. EKIFEFE/CHIRFEEZ
targets

WA(r WA/,
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KPI A1.1: There are 7 types of emissions including air pollutant, kitchen
waste, slop oil, household waste, domestic wastewater, construction waste,
sewage well and grease trap wastes. The total emission and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2021 were 312,972.4 tons and 1.03 ton/sg.m.
respectively.

KPI A1.2: The total greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide and
corresponding intensity for the financial year 2021 were 48,622.47 tons and
0.16 ton/sg.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas emission of carbon
dioxide from direct energy and corresponding intensity were 125.24 tons
and 0.0004 ton/sqg.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas emission of carbon
dioxide from indirect energy and corresponding intensity were 48,497.23
tons and 0.16 ton/sqg.m. respectively.
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KPI A1.3: The total hazardous waste produced and corresponding intensity
in the financial year 2021 were 515.2 tons and 1.69 kg/sg.m. respectively.

KPI' A1.4: The total non-hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2021 were 312,457.2 tons and 1.02 ton/sq.m.
respectively.

KPI A1.5: The Group's targets and measures to mitigate emissions for the
financial year 2021 are set out below.

—  We strived to constantly improve energy use efficiency and minimise
carbon emission to the surrounding area during the construction
processes of environmentally friendly projects.

—  We endeavoured to use environmentally friendly products and services
for our decoration and renovation projects in order to minimise the
creation of hazardous substance. For instance, we would request our
contractors to use environmentally friendly and energy saving products
which are approved by relevant government authorities, especially
materials such as adhesives, paints, coatings, etc., which must be low
VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) compliant.
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KPI A1.6: For the handling of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, the
Group's targets and measures to reduce waste for the financial year 2021
are set out below.

2030 Target (compare to 2019 level)
® EFEL YT [CEL SE Ty )

Intensity of the total wastes

BRYNEBEE

Intensity of the total
hazardous wastes -3%

FERRYBERE

Intensity of the total
non-hazardous wastes

BRERRVABERE

We set up a sewage treatment system for handling sewage in
compliance with the government’s ”Pollutant discharge standard for
urban sewage treatment plant”.

Waste prevention and management play an indispensable role in the
Group's overall environmental policy. Accordingly, the Group has
set up an effective waste management approach to ensure that
collection and treatment of waste were carried out in compliance
with relevant government regulations and would cause the least
impact on the surrounding environment. The Group will strictly
follow the relevant government requirements and enter into
disposal agreements with government approved professional firms
with relevant expertise to carry out separation, recycling and
removal of waste.

Kitchen waste mainly come from catering tenants. The Group
provides guidance to the catering tenants and employees to
promote reducing unnecessary food waste on production and
consumption. At the same time, the Group has procedures in place
on collection and treatment of kitchen waste which are strictly in
accordance with the principles and requirements as set by the
government. As opposed to dumpling, land filling or selling kitchen
waste in an illegal manner, we will enter into disposal agreements
with the municipal city government departments or designated
professional firms with relevant expertise to carry out collection and
disposal of kitchen waste.

To improve the efficiency of the piping and drainage systems, the
Group carried out transformation and optimisation works on the
sewage pump system of the water collection wells.

In 2021, thorough dredging and cleaning were conducted for all
sewage pipes and sewage treatment equipment at our Shanghai
store to improve the efficiency of the drainage system. Meanwhile,
in 2021, our Suzhou store has strengthened the daily inspection on
sewage pipes in order to eliminate the relevant safety hazard and
maintain the normal operation of on-site facilities and equipment,
and to ensure smooth drainage of water sources.
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Use of Resources

The Group is committed to minimising the overall energy consumption in
our daily operations. Through scientific management and implementing
appropriate controls in every part of our operations, we strive to maximise
the energy efficiency and minimise the wastage of electricity, gas fuel and
water resources.

KPI' A2.1: The Group's direct and/or indirect energy consumptions by type
for the financial year 2021 were 57,516,705 kWh of electricity; 57,924 cubic
meters of natural gas consumption, and 5,279 tons of steam energy
consumption. Accordingly, their energy consumption intensities were
188.45 kWh/sq.m., 0.19 cubic metre/sq.m. and 0.02 ton/sqg.m. respectively.

KPI A2.2: The total water consumption and corresponding intensity for the
financial year 2021 were 376,308 tons and 1.23 tons/sqg.m. respectively.

KPI A2.3: Electricity is mainly consumed by air conditioning systems,
vertical transportation systems, general lighting, refrigeration systems,
plumbing and drainage systems, ELV system and I.T facilities within the
Group's department stores/buildings. The Group's targets and measures
in respect of the efficiency of energy use for the financial year 2021 are set
out below:

O

Intensity of the power energy
consumption

RENRREERE

Intensity of the natural gas
consumption

AARERHEEZEE

Intensity of the steam energy
consumption

—  Consideration of energy saving and environmental friendliness of
equipment is an important evaluation criterion in outsourcing and
procuring new equipment for the Group. Priority has been given to
those energy saving and environmentally friendly products in our
general procurement of lighting and power equipment. Meanwhile,
energy saving and environmentally friendly related requirements are
also applied to the entire tendering process.

In 2021, the power equipment of our Shanghai store and Suzhou
store were set to operate based on actual needs in order to better
reduce energy consumption.

—  To substantially reduce power energy consumption, the Group is
gradually adopting long-life and lower power consumption LED
lightings in shops and office area to reduce power consumption.
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In 2021, our Shanghai store continued to promote and further
renovate lighting systems for its tenants with LED lighting, and
completed the renovation of LED lighting in the public area
including the supermarket food street and the dining area on the
8th floor. In 2021, our Suzhou store also completed the renovation of
the public LED lighting in the underground parking lot. These two
stores have adopted measures such as reasonable control of
lighting in public areas and general examination on tenants’
electricity consumption according to the regulations on energy
conservation management, in order to monitor the electricity current
control, electricity level pre-warning and reduction of electricity
dissipation in real time in the public areas of the shopping mall and
tenants.

—  As the Group strives to implement low carbon and environmentally
friendly practices, excellent performance has been achieved in
energy saving and emission reduction. In 2021, our Shanghai store
completed the carbon emission task assigned by the Shanghai
Municipal Government and was accredited as the “2021 Excellent
Unit for Energy-saving Assessment in Key Energy Consumption
Units of Jing'an District in Shanghai”. Meanwhile, our Suzhou store
also successfully passed the government’s carbon emission
verification of building in 2021.

—  To improve the efficiency in use of natural gas, our Shanghai store
completed the maintenance on heating boilers before their
operations for winter season of 2021. Daily inspections and
temperature monitoring were also enhanced to control the starting
time for the boilers and their number, so as to eradicate the waste of
natural gas.

KPI A2.4: Water consumption mainly comes from sanitary facilities for our
customers and staff as well as the water-cooled air conditioning systems.
The Group's targets and measures in respect of enhancement of water
efficiency for the financial year 2021 are set out below:

—  The Group's targets on improving water use efficiency are based on
the relevant information for the financial year 2019 and it strives to
reduce the intensity of the total water consumption of the Group by
5% to 1.61 ton/sg.m. for the financial year 2030.

— In 2021, in order to improve water consumption efficiency and avoid
wastage of water resources, our Shanghai store carried out
inspection and maintenance on the underground part of the main
water supply pipes in the pedestrian streets around the shopping
mall and a professional company was engaged to conduct a water
balance test on the water supply system of the shopping mall. In
order to prevent water wastage and enhance the water consumption
efficiency. In 2021, our Suzhou store continued to strengthen the
inspection and maintenance on the water valves, water saving
devices, faucets and sewer pipes in the toilets of the building to
reduce or control water leaking.

KPI A2.5: Packaging materials used for finished products for our business
operation are not material.
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Environment and Natural Resources

The Group supports environmental protection and carries on the greening
of our operating environment. The Group also constantly assesses its
measures taken to minimise the impact of our business operation on the
surrounding environment so that appropriate improvement actions could
be taken promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lightings and environmentally friendly paper, paper usage reduction,
turning off idle lightings, computers and electrical appliances and other
facilities and equipment to save energy. The Group is also committed to
promoting the use of recycled paper and shopping bags made by recycled
paper in our stores, where feasible.

KPI' A3.1: Appropriate actions are taken to manage the impacts of the
Group's operations on the environment and natural resources. We actively
promote environmental protection, formulate a number of policies and
measures to optimise the operation and office environment, strengthen
energy conservation and emission reduction management and emphasise
green operation and green office. Relevant polices and measures taken for
the financial year 2021 are as follows:

—  Implementing the Office Automation Application System. In 2021,
the Group further upgraded electronic office automation systems to
optimise office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and facilitate the Group's paperless office

operation.
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—  Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and recycling toner
cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files. In 2021, the Group
continued to facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our
stores based on it actual needs. At the same time, printing facilities
are reasonably adjusted to reduce the consumption of consumables.
Centralised collection and disposal of used consumables were
adopted to minimise environmental pollution resulting from
improper waste disposal.

—  Purchasing and using recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. To advocate environmentally responsible
shopping, the Group provides customers with paper bags produced
with recycled paper and printed with the environmentally friendly
recycling label, reminding the customers that paper bags can be
recycled. We take appropriate measures to strictly comply with
"General Technical Requirements of the Environmental Protection,
Safety and Labelling for Plastic Shopping Bags” and “Notice on
Restrictions of Manufacturing and the Sale of Plastic Bags” issued by
the country. Reduction on plastic bag consumption was achieved by
charging customers for non-woven bags, and providing plastic bags
only when necessary;

—  Encouraging the use of environmentally friendly materials and
energy efficient equipment in our construction projects. In respect of
the renovation and design of our office and stores, the Group
actively adds in environmental-friendly philosophy to adopt open
atrium design to maximise the use of natural light and share
lightings in common areas, and retain or refinish the existing
furniture where possible during renovations to reasonably make use
of the existing resources.

The Group aims to achieve a compatible development of people,
buildings and the natural environment. While utilising natural resources
and handmade means to create a good and healthy living and entertaining
environment, we aim at controlling and minimising the use and destruction
of the natural environment.
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Climate Change

KPI A4.1: Climate change has become a global focus and a major issue.
Extreme weather events caused by climate change are also becoming
more and more serious, bringing significant risks and impacts to the global
economy. The Group has always been committed to managing climate
change and has taken various measures to assess and reduce risks. The
Group has identified different physical risks that may pose a threat to its
operations and its financial performance, including various extreme
weather conditions and disasters (including droughts, floods, severe
typhoons, unusually persistent heat waves, epidemics, etc.) caused by
climate change. In addition, the Group also recognised the corresponding
transition risks caused by climate change, including the increase in
attention to climate-related issues, changes in consumer preferences and
changes in investors’ expectations and views to the Group, which may
result in the potential increase in operation, compliance and other costs.

Therefore, the Group will review the latest policies and regulations related
to climate change in the regions where it operates in a timely manner, and
identify potential climate-related risks that affect its operation activities
and long-term sustainable development. At the same time, the Group also
communicates with stakeholders to understand their climate-related
expectations and concerns.

In order to deal with climate-related risks, ensure the safety of employees
and on-site personnel, and reduce the adverse effects of various extreme
weather conditions and disasters on operations and long-term sustainable
development, the Group has formulated relevant counter-measures and
plans as internal guidelines for its work procedures, so as to issue safety
warnings and make special work arrangements when such situations occur.
At the same time, the Group also pays close attention to and understands
the relevant requirements and regulations on addressing climate change
where it operates, continuously reviews and improves relevant work
arrangements and guidelines, and conducts relevant special drills on a
regular basis every year, in order to enhance employees’ awareness of
protection and response, ensure the safety of employees and on-site
personnel, and reduce property losses.

Moreover, in view of the current global outbreak of the novel coronavirus
("COVID-19"), the Group has also proactively taken measures to prevent
and control the pandemic affected by extreme weather conditions in the
regions where it operates. The Group has also established emission
reduction targets and corresponding measures that help reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, so as to contribute to the sustainability of the

global ecosystem.

RIRB L

BRANIERAL RIRE(C DR REIRET
EHNERHE - AREE RN IRHRRE
HIEBEE HEREEBRERRARME
2  AEBERBBOREBRRKRE( - WEHR
T RS bRl SRR R R - AN EE BB A REH
BENMEMBRABREENTREERR &
R SRR B0 5| 3 B0 B TR R im R /IR L A
(BRERA KL BRE - REFENER - &
BF) o s - AR E IR R E B R IR 2 (5] 3%
MR BERR  SEARNRRAREERIE
HIEIN - HEERENEEREAREEHARE
MEBERBMNNES  ARELEE ARk
H b A A HYIE AN

Pt - AN 5% 1B o i 5 2 B 4 2 T Mt [ B SRUIR 2
LR BER MR PIE R - B8 EENERE
BEPLERAAFERRELTZENEERKMA
B - FRS - TREE O EBR - AR EER
REBOHMLE R BT -

REHREEFERR  REEERRSAEBNT
2 BAOBEEBRRAR ML EHERELTE
PBLRBAHEERREENTANTZE  AEES
FERBEE IR RIER TEL A BDE
5 UENBEBREERBEHZ2EE RMEHE
B TARZEE - Rl - AN E IREE I B R B AR AR
EREN A WESRIRE(CMERERL IR
RN SRR T ERERIES  YBFE
HEITHBEIERR - LIRS THbE ke
BE BREBNMASAEBNZE  BREMER
%o

AN - ERE R 2L EMAES ([COVID-19])
REBEE - ARETRGES KSR E A
ERRRIERZETABARENE I BEEE - A
SETEHERY B R RAEER  ZFHER
BRI AR E R - A R IR R R R AT #
BUEL—0ER -




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

Social

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

As of 31 December 2021, we had 1,167 employees, with 1,162 stationed in
the PRC and 5 in Hong Kong.

As an employer embracing equal opportunities, the Group’s employment
policy aims to provide a working environment where is no discrimination
on the basis of race, gender, religion, age, etc., and establish a sound and
quality work environment to attract talents. All applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fairness.

In order to attract and retain outstanding talents, the Group has a
comprehensive performance appraisal management system and regularly
communicates with employees to ensure its system’s transparency and
fairness. Through the assessment of employees’ job performance, we
employ and promote employees who are with common values and
professional ethics, and praise those who are self-motivated, responsible
and honest in order to ensure the continued improvement of the Group's
business.

Employees’ remuneration package is reviewed regularly by the Group. The
evaluation makes reference to the labour market and the level of salaries
and benefits in the same industry and takes into account of employees’
performance and working experience to ensure that competitive
remuneration packages are being offered so as to motivate their
continuous improvement and contribution to the Group. In terms of
employee dismissal policy, the Group follows the local regulations as
stipulated by the government.

The policy on working hours, rest days, other benefits and welfare of the
Group is in line with the requirements of the local government and
industry practices. In addition to paid annual leave, we also offer
employees other types of leaves, including sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and care leave.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiatives to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We work with labour unions to organise a
wide range of leisure and cultural activities to express our care to our
employees and promote healthy lifestyle and strengthen their sense of
belonging and togetherness to the Group.

In the financial year 2021, there were no serious breaches of applicable
legislations and/or regulations.
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KPI B1.1: Number of employees by gender, type of employment and age ~ BASERIEIZB1.1 : 2021 BRE EIR MR - &

group in the financial year 2021 is shown in the following charts: BERE - FRENZDNEEABERAT
Gender Distribution Employment Type 2.2%
BUERE D EEER
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. Services Contracts
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KPI B1.2: In the financial year 2021, the employees’ turnover rate of the — BASENIEEBI2IEEM S * 2021 BREFE -
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The employees’ turnover rates by gender and age group in the financial
year 2021 are as follows:

By gender By Age Group
R 82 RERAR B D
Male 5514 (®) -
1 l08 /o

Y 076%

21-307%
Female Z It

1.29%
Health and Safety

The Group always strives to provide and maintain a safe and healthy
environment in its property portfolio for all the customers, employees, and
business partners. Therefore, the Group provides comprehensive
insurance coverage including work injury and employer liability, as well as
annual health check to its employees. We conduct regular inspection of
premises, provide training and education to our employees on disaster
prevention, fire drills, occupational safety, as well as first aid training to
enhance employees’ knowledge and skills to prevent accidents.

KPI B2.1: There was no work-related fatality incidents reported in the past
three years, including the financial year 2021.

KPI B2.2: In the financial year 2021, the number of loss of working days due
to work injuries was 49 days, accounting for 0.02% of normal working days.

KPI B2.3: Occupational health and safety measures implemented are as
follows:

—  Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a tidy
environment in office and department store areas, and providing
sufficient working space in the offices.

—  Smoking is prohibited in office and department store areas.

—  Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.
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At the same time, the Group requires its employees to share the
responsibility in the setting, execution and monitoring of policies in
respect of safety and health. Their responsibilities include:

— lIdentifying, reporting and avoiding hazards at workplace in relation
to health and safety and having the responsibility to report such
hazards immediately to superiors or the security department.

— Investigating any accidents or hazards to prevent them from
happening or re-occurrence.

—  Working together with the company in adopting work safety
methods and procedures.
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In 2021, against the backdrop of the ongoing outbreak of COVID-19, the
Group has been committed to providing and maintaining a safe and
healthy shopping and working environment for all customers, employees
and partners in the property portfolio during the epidemic prevention and
control period in accordance with the relevant government requirements
on epidemic prevention and control and based on the actual operation
situation of the operating sites. The relevant policies and measures are set
out below:

—  Through the establishment of an effective epidemic prevention and
control system and in accordance with the information and
requirements on epidemic prevention and control issued by the
government, the Group continuously formulated, adjusted and
implemented corresponding emergency plans and protective
measures for epidemic prevention and control.

— Arranging special personnel to purchase epidemic protective
equipment regularly, including masks, hand sanitisers, alcohol,
disinfectants, etc., to ensure the supply of materials for epidemic
prevention and control.
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— Arranging special personnel to be responsible for frequent
disinfection and division of dining areas of staff canteens, and
adopted epidemic prevention and control measures such as
different time slots and separated areas for dining to reduce crowds
gathering.

— Arranging special personnel to conduct body temperature screening
on the personnel entering and leaving the premises and requiring
relevant personnel to wear protective masks.

—  Arranging professional cleaning staff to disinfect the facilities of the
premises (including but not limited to passageway handles, lift cars
and buttons, escalators handles, information desks, public garbage
bins and shopping carts, etc.) on a daily basis with high frequency.
Professional cleaning staff disinfected the washrooms daily with high
frequency and thoroughly disinfected the operating premises on a
weekly basis as scheduled.

—  Disinfection stations were set up at customer information desk and
major entrances and exits of the premises in order to provide
alcohol disinfection services to customers. At the same time, special
garbage bins for disinfection were prepared for disposal of
discarded masks for unified collection to avoid further pollution.

—  The operation of air-conditioning and fresh air system and ventilation
work during the epidemic prevention and control period has
complied strictly with the relevant government requirements on
epidemic prevention.

— In accordance with the relevant government requirements on
pandemic prevention and control, professionals are arranged to clean
and disinfect the air-conditioning room and air-conditioning units.

Professional air-conditioning system cleaning companies were engaged to
thoroughly clean the air-conditioning systems and pipes in the operating
premises, and professional institutions were arranged to assess the
cleaning results to ensure that the hygiene of the air-conditioning systems
meets the relevant government technical requirements.
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Development and Training BERIE

The Group firmly regards employees as valuable assets and their ZASBREEERASBENEEVEREE B
development helps driving the growth of the Group. In pursuing our EBMEREALEEENES ) - EEREBERL
business objectives and providing protection to the general rights and  RIEEBEAREMNRE - NEBOEGEBE
interests of our employees, the Group aims to put in place a suitable A FH{E -~ EHBRRFIFEREEAE LR
platform that supports the Group and employee development and training  BREEBREVNARNEBE RIEBZHE MFINTF
through performance evaluation, two-way communications and & ° AEBEEFEN TFIFENME B 2R MEFIMEK
questionnaires on training needs. The employee development and training % :

policies adopted by the Group include:

—  Providing new comers with comprehensive orientation programme — AN MAMNESRHEZ2EHO ARSI
to assist new comers familiar with the Group. Al LA BT A iE E B AR E o

—  Providing employees with regular and ad-hoc internal job-related — EEETEHNAEESIREEEEENR
training and development workshops. BEII R EE -

—  Post training evaluations are conducted to assess the effectiveness of ~ — & 5l{& 7T BRiE 575 AR IR A AR -

these training programmes.

KPI B3.1: Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  BAHEBUIEIER3.1 : HIERI MEEERE HHF
category are as follow: HEEBASLERMT

Gender Distribution Employment Type
BRI 8D EREER

BREEE

@)
Male Hi Seni
ﬁ 35 . 40/0 meannIZ;ement 28.4%

Female 2 14 Middle
management and
below 30.0%
PREEBERAT
KPI B3.2: Average training hours completed per employee by gender and ~ BASEIEIEB3.2 - IR REEEREH -
employee category are as follow: ZRERETHRZ I FEREERDT

By gender By Employee Category
RMEBI & 5 RESERE S
o
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| Middle

Female 221 management and 7.97
below hours
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to strictly complying with the relevant local labour
and employment laws and regulations, and ensure that the employment
contracts with employees are on a legal, fair, equal, voluntary, mutually
agreed and good faith basis. The Group adopts employment policy and
procedures which prohibit forced labour and child labour. The same
requirements also apply to the Group’s concessionaires and tenants.

KPI B4.1: We strive to perform continuous review and improvement on the
recruitment practices to prevent child labour and forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

—  Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/or employ any
persons who are below 16 years old for any reason. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the age of
the applicants during recruitment to ensure that no minors under
the age of 16 are employed.

—  All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not allow
forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure employee to
join the Group.

KPI B4.2: We are not aware of any child or forced labour incidents in the
financial year 2021. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any risk of
having child or forced labour in our business operation. We are committed
to taking immediate measures to eliminate any non-compliance in respect
of child and forced labour.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

In accordance with our operating practices and the composition of
different segments along our supply chain management model, our
department stores sell direct purchased merchandises and offer branded
merchandises and services through concessionaire and leasing
arrangements. Through seamless cooperation with suppliers and business
partners, and highly efficient information technology networks, the Group
is able to work smoothly along the supply chain which optimises the
resources allocation to deliver high-quality products and services to our
customers. The Group strives to share our commitments and beliefs in
environmental and social aspects with our business partners. This also
encourages our business partners to pay attention to and control
environmental and social risks that may be related to supply chain
management and embrace high standards of corporate responsibilities
which are similar to those of ours.

The supply chain management policy adopted within the Group set out as
below:

—  To cooperate in a fair, honest and responsible manner with suppliers
who share our business philosophy.

—  Suppliers are contractually prohibited to hire child labour.
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—  Suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that the products they
offer are non-toxic and meet relevant government and industry
requirements and standards.

KPI B5.1: As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,619 suppliers in China,
including 1,120 suppliers for Shanghai store and 499 suppliers for Suzhou
store.

KPI B5.2:

— In engaging suppliers, they are required to meet the Group's
product requirements, such as price, quantity and delivery time.

— In engaging suppliers, it is based on a set of standards, including
quality control and compliance with relevant standards applicable to
China and/or the globe.

—  Renewal of supplier contracts is subject to review of their
performance based on the practice and their achievements.

KPI'B5.3:

—  Suppliers are responsible for product management in the sales area,
ensuring that the products provided are of good quality, and shall
not provide inferior commodities, and all process in their supply
chain shall comply with the practices of environmental protection
and social risk reduction. The Group has the right to conduct
random inspections on the quality of products provided by the
suppliers.

KPI B5.4:

—  Suppliers are required to abide by the "Store Decoration Design
Guidelines”, "Interior Decoration Code” and other specifications
formulated by the Group. After completing the decoration project, it
should be inspected by the relevant departments of the Group's
member companies to ensure that the decoration conforms to the
practices and requirements of environmental protection and
services. In the event of not meeting the requirements, the suppliers
are required to rectify immediately.
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Product Responsibility

The Group believes that our corporate sustainability and reputation are
built on our high quality products and services. Our operation team is
committed to providing safe and high quality products and services to our
customers, and addressing customer complaints with utmost attention.

Moreover, the Group believes that product safety is the key to our success.
We strictly follow the industry standards and government regulations
relevant to our products and services. We provide trainings to employees
to enhance their consciousness of product safety in order to prevent any
counterfeits and sub-standard merchandises being sold at our stores and
to protect the rights and interests of our consumers.

The product safety policies adopted by the Group are as follow:

—  For non-food products, the Group enhanced the quality checks on
products provided by our suppliers and business partners to ensure
that these products meet the relevant safety standards and
requirements. Based on the characteristics of product, special
attention is placed on the compliance with those regulations and
requirements related to baby and children products, toys and
customer safety to ensure that our products sold fully comply with
the relevant mandatory regulations and requirements of the PRC.

—  For food products, the Group assumes the primary responsibility for
food safety in accordance with the relevant provisions of the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC". We also set and implement policies and
procedures such as “Purchase inspection and recording policy”,
"Food selling procedure management”, “Procedures regarding
removal of substandard food items from shelves”, and “policy and
procedures relating to reporting and handling of emergency food
safety incident” to ensure all food items provided are safe.

KPI B6.1: During the year, no products were recalled by the Group due to
significant safety and health reasons.

KPI B6.2: Our customer services extended to before, during and after the
sales. All complaints are handled by professional personnel of the Group's
customer service department. Details of the complaints, progress status,
handling time and settlement are properly recorded and supervised. There
were 454 complaints in respect to products and services received by the
Group in financial year 2021, which were consistent with the industry norm.
At the same time, during the epidemic prevention and control period, the
customer service department also overcame various difficulties to ensure
that relevant customers’ complaints relating to return and exchange of
products and maintenance were properly handled.

KPI B6.3: The Group recognises that brand equity is critical to our success.
We actively allocate resources to maintain and protect the intellectual

property rights of our brands.

—  We value intellectual property rights and determine intellectual
property rights as an indispensable element of successful business.
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—  We manage and protect our intellectual property rights through
registration and maintenance and enforcement measures.

—  We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not infringe
their intellectual property rights.

—  Suppliers who have business dealings with the Group are required to
ensure that they will not display, sell, use and store any items that
infringe the intellectual property rights of others at designed sales
areas or counters, and also undertake not to engage in other related
illegal acts at designed sales areas or department store areas.

KPI B6.4: If products are found to be of significant quality problems, the
Group will initiate action plan to trace the product batch so as to ensure
the improved quality of products and services.

KPI B6.5: In order to protect the relevant information and privacy of
consumers, the personal information that consumers fill out in the
“"Membership Application Form” when applying for a membership card
are entered into the membership system of the Group by specialised
personnel, and are archived confidentially and centrally managed. Our
employees are not allowed to access member information without
authorisation.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve transparency, integrity and accountability in
our operations and require our employees to maintain high standard on
ethics, personal and professional conducts in order to maintain and
promote the Group's reputation. In addition to these codes of conduct for
employees, the Group has in place an interest declaration and
whistleblowing mechanism, which we share with our Directors, colleagues
and business partners to minimise and mitigate any situations that may
lead to the occurrence of conlflict of interests or corruptions. At the same
time, the Group considers integrity as our core value and encourages our
employees to report any improper, misconduct or fraudulent conducts.
The anti-corruption policy of the Group is set out in the Employees’
Handbook and the "Letter of Undertaking by Supplier in respect of
Anti-Commercial Bribery”.

KPI B7.1: In the financial year 2021, there were no members of the Group
or any of their employees during the employment term being prosecuted
for corruption.

KPl B7.2: The Group requires employees to confirm and sign the
“Declaration and Commitment of Honesty and Integrity” when they are
employed, and requires relevant suppliers and outsourcing processors that
have business dealings with the Group to confirm and sign the
“Anti-Commercial Bribery Commitment” before conducting formal
transactions, and comply with the relevant anti-corruption commitments
and requirements set out in the employee handbook and commitment
letter.
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Any employee can report to the relevant departments of the Group
companies directly or through any managerial staff if corruption is
identified or suspected. The whistleblower may also request that his/her
identity be kept confidential. We will protect the whistleblower from any
form of retaliation to the extent practicable, unless the whistleblower
himself/herself has violated the regulations or acts maliciously.

KPI B7.3: The Group's member companies are required to provide
Directors and employees with the above anti-corruption training and
reiterate the above anti-corruption requirements on a regular or irregular
basis as the case may be.

Community
Community Investment

"

The Group adheres to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participate in community and social services to promote
corporate social responsibilities and make contributions to the society. In
this regard, we actively invest in the community, especially in those less
privileged groups as well as the young generation in respect of education,
growth and development. Through engaging and interacting with the

community, the Group aims to:

—  Support less privileged groups and bring them love and hopes;
—  Encourage employees to be compassionate and sympathetic;

—  Strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the society; and
—  Provide education to help them achieving better future.

KPI B8.1: The Group contributes its time and resources to the community
in the following areas:

—  Supporting and interacting with the community (such as the less
privileged groups and people with disabilities); and

— Education
KPI B8.2: The related initiative in each area include:

—  For education support, activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2021 were as follows,

In August 2021, our Suzhou store continued to participate in the
Charity Education Support Programme of Suzhou Industrial Park
Charity Federation, and continued to support students from less
privileged families in Suzhou Industrial Park, thus students from less
privileged families would acquire knowledge and not give up the

opportunities to learn due to the poverty of their families. Suzhou
store donated RMB200,000 in this activity.
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In July 2021, our Suzhou store participated in the project of love
dormitory construction project for schools in poor mountainous
areas organised by Ying Chun Hua Love Federation (¥ & 75 B /0B
A &) of the Suzhou Industrial Park, providing assistance to schools
from the less privileged region. We extended our support to Majian
Middle School in Xiji County, Ningxia Autonomous Region (%2 &2 78
HHBEFBE) and Gupo School in Gangu County, Gansu Province
(HERH A% & 2) by donating 240 sets of dormitory bedding

with a value of approximately RMB24,000.

In August 2021, our Shanghai store joined hands with the Art
Rainbow, a charity creative art exhibition for the children of the earth
in the future as a charity bazaar. We supported the Shanghai Charity
Education and Training Center with actions and financial support by
sponsoring children in need for 6 consecutive years (especially the
development of disabled youth) and caring for their growth and
success, and contributed to the charity with a donation of
RMB50,000.

In terms of social care, activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2021 were as follows,

In January 2021, our Shanghai store continued to participate in the
“Love under Blue Sky — Charity Sale by Thousands of Shop” event
hosted by the Shanghai Charity Foundation, and donated part of a
day'’s sales revenue in the amount of RMB10,000 to support women
living in poverty for gynecological examination and the elderly in
difficulties.

In October 2021, our Shanghai store participated in the targeted
poverty alleviation donation organised by the Jing'an District
Representative Institution of Shanghai Charity Foundation, and
donated RMB50,000 to the “Street Lighting Project in Guima
Village, Guangnan County, Wenshan Prefecture, Yunnan Province
(EREXIINERBRESNZEKER(LTIZ)” and the “Living
Environment Improvement Project in Shiyakou Village, Guangnan
County, Wenshan Prefecture, Yunnan Province (ZFg4 XL &R %
AYANZE AFBRIIBEA L) respectively and a total of
RMB100,000 was donated to the Jing'an District Representative
Institution of Shanghai Charity Foundation.

In terms of earthquake and disaster relief and social assistance, the
Group's support for the flood relief in Henan Province in the
financial year 2021 are as follows,
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In July 2021, Henan Province was ravaged by extremely heavy rainfall, our
Shanghai store actively launched the "Henan Flood Relief” charity
donation activity, and donated RMB1,000,000 through the Shanghai
Charity Federation to support flood control and disaster relief in Henan
Province. Suzhou store also donated RMB1,000,000 through the Suzhou
Industrial Park Charity Federation. At the same time, employees of the
Shanghai store and Suzhou store donated RMB107,985 and RMB38,112
respectively to contribute to the flood control and rescue and
post-disaster reconstruction, working together with the compatriots in
Henan Province to fight against the disaster and overcome the difficulties.

The Group continued to work with various charitable organisations to
actively interact with local communities in a variety of ways during the year.
In the financial year 2021, the charitable organisations we worked with
included Shanghai Charity Foundation, Shanghai Jing’an District Civil
Affairs Bureau, Shanghai Charitable Education and Training Center,
Suzhou Industrial Park Charity Foundation and Ying Chun Hua Love
Federation of Suzhou Industrial Park.

'%%:Eﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬂkﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
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Outlook

The Group will continue to uphold our principle in a responsible manner
and strive to strike a balance among the interests of our customers,
employees, shareholders and the society, and is committed to the
coordinated developments between the enterprise and the society, the
enterprise and the environment and the enterprise and the stakeholders,
and make contributions to the society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting BERBERXSZFAERATNERIER - 1
Guide of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited &K &J4#55l

A1 Emissions

2958

e General Disclosure

. —RENHE

LD
| T

e KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions
data
o FARERIERAL N IE L KA B B i R

e KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity

o BMREBIRFAI2ER (#E1) RER
B (HBE) REREBHENEREE

e KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
s BMREVEBAIMELRZRRENBERTE

Environment — Emissions
RIE — Y

e KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and
intensity

s MAREBEMEFRAAMELREREREMBERTE

e KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them

o BRBUEBAISHUMMAITLHRE ERERZERE
FRTERER B9 22 5%

e KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
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A2 Use of Resources % @
BRER

General Disclosure

—RERE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity
BREMEEA2 VB EI DN EE R S REEERE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BREBIEIZEA2 28 KERTE

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them
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KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
BREVIEEA2AH AR BEE KRR EFERE - I
FIM K E B R MERZ S BRI 25

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished
products

REMIEEA2SHK R TABRM RS

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRXRER

General Disclosure

—REFE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and actions
taken to manage them
BREVEEABIHAEREHHRBERRAAERNE
TENERDNEREREE

A4 Climate Change

RIREL

General Disclosure

—REMKE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them
BREVEEAMIEAEE R EHBETAEETE
WEBEBARGHEBEER  REHTH

Environment — Use of Resources
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Environment — Environment and Natural Resources
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Environment — Climate Change
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Employment and Labour Practices

BREERSEIESR

B1 Employment
(]

e General Disclosure

. —RENEE

e KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region

o BARERIEIEBIRMR - EMER - FRAR RitRE
DHES BB

e KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region

o HRBERIEZEBI2EMUR - FiENRbREDEES
MR &

B2 Health and Safety
REHZR

e General Disclosure

. —RENEE

e KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years including the
reporting year

o MBENIEEB2I BE=F (BEBEFE) B ITIEHAE
[IRIAS:=0PN - 954

e KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury
o MARENIEZEB22ETHBRATIFAK

e KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored

o BARBRIEIEB23 MM TR B R B B 2 2R
AR AERETT R BTk

B3 Development and Training

BR RIE

e General Disclosure

. —RENBE

e KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category

o HREVEEBNRUEFIREERFEIOXIIEER
baNd

e KPI B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category

o BRERIEEBI2RMBINESENE D BRESTK
E 38T 5
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Social — Employment and Labour Practices — Employment

e —REERSETIESR — &R

Social — Employment and Labour Practices — Health and
Safety
e —ERESIER —REEZS

Social — Employment and Labour Practices —
Development and Training

e —EERSIEHR —FREE
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B4 Labour Standards
T XA

General Disclosure

—REF R

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour
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KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered
BRERUEEBA I EHRERBARHRBERABR
FRERER Y 27 B

Social — Employment and Labour Practices
— Labour Standards
HE —EERLEIER — 4 ITEL

B5 Supply Chain Management
HrEEEE

General Disclosure

—RERIKE

Qg

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
%A 52 45 SR 12 B5. 1 4 b [2 & 5 ) £t FE P 25 B

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored
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KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply chain,
and how they are implemented and monitored
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KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products and services when

selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and

monitored
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Social — Operating Practices — Supply Chain Management
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B6 Product Responsibility
EmEE

e General Disclosure

. —HEHBEE

e KPI Bé6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

o BRENIEREBOI E%yaﬁ REMBBTEZ2HEE
FIEmmARWE A D

e KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with

o BARBRUEZEBO2ZERNEm MR EVIRFEE LA K
FE% 770K

e KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

o FASRIERUIRIZBO.3 M il B 4t 7 N (R [R AR EE HE B R 1B
Bl

e KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures

o BARBEBURFEBO.AM M E BinTE BIR R E mE W AE Fr

e KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored

o BARMERUERBOSHIUHEEBRRERFLBBE - AR
BT RERTE

B7 Anti-corruption

P

RES

e General Disclosure

. —WAREE

e KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

o 3 ii%ﬁ RAREB7 AR ERP AT ASEEERE L

BRENBESRARMTOEE MFABR

e KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored

o FARERURIZBY 2R SR B RER - AR
TRERT A

e KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff

o BARBRUIEFEB/IHWAMESTRE T REMNREISHE
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Social — Operating Practices — Product Responsibility
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Social — Operating Practices — Anti-corruption
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Community
HE

B8 Community Investment

HERE

e General Disclosure

. —RENEE

e KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Social — Community — Community Investment

o BREVIEEBIZIEREE He—iER—HEERE

e KPI B8.2 Resources contributed
o BREBIBEB2EZ IHEMBAER
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors ("Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2021, except the following deviation:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not segregated
but such arrangement facilitates the development and execution of the
Group's business strategies and enhances efficiency and effectiveness of
its operations.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of five
directors, including one executive director, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group's business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
"Corporate Information” in this annual report. During the year and
up to the date of this report, there was no change in the
composition of the Board. The directors’ biographical details and
the relationships among them are set out in the "Profile of
Directors” in this annual report.

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

46

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, being
the same person, is responsible for setting overall strategic plan and
development of the Group as well as for implementing the Board's
decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's overall
performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources
are available to implement the business strategies being adopted
from time to time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and
direction for management, reporting to the Board on the Group's
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for further
evaluation and assessment by the Board.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximising the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.

(2)

(3)

(4)
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(5)

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company’s articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same
general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years and all
directors (including non-executive directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are
subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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(5)

EXeHEREMNTRIRSE  EFA
RHREEERIEENE(WR) - EHESF
EEFERTEENFERATFREHES
FRB/EBANNEETR FHEFEHRIE
BRAMMAEROIEE WKL ESR
ZEgRIE(ERA) -

EREFHV ARG RERTABASE
BB R&HERZRH A ENBR
MER - ERERTHEEEIELERR
Ko ARBIMERMEFS2EHERH
FHER ABRFABITRERE - &
SENEERWBEEMES A ERESB
BEFEATEREEEREFTEERERR
BERFDE SENEETRNZERTRE
RRARAVESKBYIEERER  RAW
EARBTH BRBARAN -

ESCEERER

RIELRZBEHBR  MEFNHZRIHE (W
B REES - REARREESEEMEA
Exe I MRZEEFAEMGRR =R
BAEEGNE - EAHEESZEHRE
HEFRARREERRAS I (NEEH
BREZR) REARB TERRBEFAS
(NBEREFEKE) BIE - XEERRN
Fl—RRAE LEREE-

FIBNTER (BREBIIIFRITES) A
—FZEEENEZERREAA R AR
ERAR AEES (BREFAITES)A
ELOB=FHERE WAKLEREE-

47



Corporate Governance Report (continued) 73 &4 R 2 ()

(6)

(7)
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Meetings 6) &=
The Board held four meetings during the year to review and EEERFAYSERAMAGEH  UWENK
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results HE (AR aiE) REENPHRRRAZES
announcements and financial statements, the continuing connected NERMBHRE  HERER S REH
transaction, and to review quarterly operating performance of the REBNZFELERS -
Group.
Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in RIBERARRAMERBUNERE  EF
person or through video/telephone conferencing means in EREEFRAUURIE BEEHIAL
accordance with the provisions of the Company'’s articles of HARBEZGER SEFNFALE
association. The attendance record of each director at the Board EFeeR MREBFARG 2T
meetings and annual general meeting held during the year is set out Ik
below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HEBITEBRRE
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
Directors B Exgem BREBFRE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas gl 4/4 11
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRIEIS/NE 4/4 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SR EMR/NA 3/4 11
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIRS 4/4 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai AR E 4/4 11
Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee (7) ESSRHETZESSECEARE

Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.

Ll
RAMERERRARLARLETE
FehEETZRERER  UNETE
ZAERAEENEETZRE AKX
BRHEEBBY SRBEREZTE R
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(8) Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional

Development

Induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company will be provided to each newly appointed director, if any.
The Company continuously updates the directors on the Group's
businesses and the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements.

During the year, the directors participated the following training:

(8) ESRMERFEEXRRE

BEMZEZEE (B SHEREARE
AEBEBR LT AREFEERZNEE
FEENRMBEN - ARRFEMOES
REEEAREREON - EHRAIRAE
fEREE RENRNER -

FAEBFRZDLENUTHI

Types of Training

Directors B o Ekic)
Executive Director HITES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Gt A, B, C
Non-executive Director EHITES

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRI IS/ NME A, B, C
Independent Non-executive Directors BYUFHTES

Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRR/ NME A, B, C
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR & A C
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MIET K& A B, C
A — reading materials provided by the Company relating to A — BEAAQRRMBERARATE

the Company'’s businesses and regular updates on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements relevant to director’'s duties and
responsibilities

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate

governance matters, environment and social issues or
director’s duties and responsibilities

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the remunerations paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately RMB2.34 million and
approximately RMBO0.37 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group respectively. Details of non-audit services and the
fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information RMBO0.37 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2021
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Board Committees
As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration

committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have

been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in

discharging its responsibilities.

EEg@BETHWZEES

REABEBH BRE

g2 &
/\El

CHHEEER

REZBEQIDENF  ARFHREANBIESE
R LB EEEEITERARE -

(1)  Audit Committee 1) BREES®

The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam ERZEEHR=-BXEBANK  BIMXE

Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, oA SRER/NERRIR SR - B R

Raymond, all are independent non-executive directors. The audit BURBULFNTEE -BEREES

committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, who is a certified MAREEREEFE > BARESAE -

public accountant. The audit committee is provided with sufficient ERZERRIEHFARERABITEARE
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the REEFRAIFANERIESIATE 2 B%E

committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the SelBEHEFIIEZEe BN NMEE -

guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on EEH N AR A -

the Company's website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows: ERZEGZIERENT

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company's (i) ER AR A HNE LB 2 RIS R E
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the Z AN RIS E B E IR R AR %
related audit fees; HER:

(i) toreview the Company's financial statements and reports, the (i) BHARAIZHBHRERRE &
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the FIREEN 2 #E) REGHEST
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing AR EmAR B ROADIAR
Rules and legal requirements; JE

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk (iy ERAEBEZUBKERHE - R
management and internal control systems; and B R ANEREEIEGIE &

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as (iv) B REECETRHIIZOES
set out in the CG Code. R BV EBAE ©

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The ilaq ERZEERRITMRERE - BF

attendance record of each committee member is set out below: gREERERZSHEHAIINT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members EREEERE HEBITERRE

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MICBT A (EFE) 2/2

Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRE/ A 2/2

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIS 2/2

FRPEREARLAE —ZS-—FFR 51



Corporate Governance Report (continued) 73 &4 R 2 ()

(2)

52

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group's interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
(iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group; and
(v) reviewed the management’s position and basis of assessment on
major judgmental areas concerning the auditor’'s modified opinion.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai,
who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide
advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management; (ii) any specific
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office
of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

(2)

ERZZEERE LO)EIIBRBMERA
SEPHRFERBHRRNIBERBER
S AHEERILE ¢ ()EIMNEZEED
EHAKEMERAZ S RAIREFER:
(iii) 2 B L B B 32 N TR BB B 4 %'JFZEAZ
1 (EHAREZ EXEIAREE

AR BN 2 BIAD H A JE R %ﬁﬁqﬁ
FEE ZHH 7T S5 R FF il B2 o

%’r@ﬂ%ﬁa
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FREBIEAHENK - FTHEESRIEHT
WERNEBITERE
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BEFHRA QR Hu

e S ZI%E&,\F’, ?f%%&%—,
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ZBEERBE®MR Eﬁfﬂ?ﬂﬁi‘f*ﬁ@ﬂﬁ?@ ;
KWV ERREENESRERER T

HHZTH"JW ZHMEFSRIERLE

FR HFHEZBEEERT - RERH-BX
BegRBEHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FMZEEERE HiE BITEBRRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBt 11
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MBI (FFE) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NAE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIB X SE 1/1

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and
recommended for the Board's approval (i) the discretionary bonus
for the chief executive officer for the year 2020; and (ii) the
remuneration packages of the directors for the year 2021.

FHEEER @L%Bﬁ&?&%%%‘\ﬁt/ﬁ
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(3)

FIRPERERRAT

Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is the chairman of
the nomination committee. The nomination committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company’s Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.
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The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

FR - REZBEERT - REH-BX
BegREHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members REEEEHE g BITEBRRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman) RIEIB A (XF) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NAE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR S A 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MR 11

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and
(iii) made recommendations to the Board on the proposed re-
election of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Group's system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organisational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
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The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
director and audit committee periodically. The internal audit also follows
up with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and annual audit
conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance that the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain extent
independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December, 2021, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2021 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analyst’s briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive director and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements in
force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also
provides an opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.
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Dividend Policy

The Company currently does not have a pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Any declaration, payment and amount of dividend in the future are
subject to the Board's discretion having regard to the Group's future
financial performance and earnings, capital requirement and surplus,
general financial conditions and other factors as the Board may consider
relevant.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the "Corporate Information” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle China Group Limited

20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Profile of Directors

EEEN

Executive Director

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 68, joined the Company in January 2016. He is the
Chairman, chief executive officer, and is also director of certain
subsidiaries and associated companies of the Company. Mr. Lau is also the
chairman and a non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is a member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai
Committee and a member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao
Tong University, the PRC.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 60, joined the Company in March 2016. She has over 20
years of experience in corporate management. Ms. Chan holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor degree in Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Ms. Cheung, aged 56, joined the Company in June 2016. Ms. Cheung is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from the University of London and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
the University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries). Ms. Cheung has more than 30 years of experience
in the company secretarial sector. She has pursued her career in the legal
sector since 2006 and is currently a partner at S.Y. Wong & Co, a law firm in
Hong Kong. She is the President of the Hong Kong Sailing Federation.

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 67, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Cheung is an
entrepreneur and has over 10 years of experience in the department store
industry. He also has over 20 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and served as a director of the 15th
Board of Directors of the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers in 1992.

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lam, aged 66, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Lam serves as an
executive director, group financial controller and company secretary of
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He has over 40 years of experience in auditing, finance and
accounting industries. Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and holds a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom.
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Directors’ Report

EEEWE

The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the PRC.

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 76.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 15 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group Financial
Summary” on page 163. Particulars of important event affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year under review are
provided in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 16 to 44 of this annual report.

60

AATEER (EER ) HULRSHERRAS
—F-—F+- A=A ZERHEA
B -

IEXE

ARTA—MRAERAR  KHELRAZEE
EHARTEAEAEERARTEEBURY
ERE -

ARG XEEWBRAGFBEANGAMBRE
PfsE42 o

XERDE
AEEHE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=Z+—BHLFEZ
EEHNFI6EGA BN EMEENER -

EEefERNEE_S-_—F+=-A=1+—8
IFFEZ REBE -

E e
AEEHE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=Z+—BHLFEZ
F 15 0B B IR ¥R R S 8 R DA SR AR SR B P B
FTERRETHABEEZNTH SR AFR
FARSE RFBOEISEZIERMEIRIERE
BET SR i

RAMBRAEREFHAKERFARTEND
TENEICBE[AFEEMNBHE] - B MEY
BERGERRBEHAKREAZENERNEMN
FHIBHN R A IS MRM 4 -

EASLERERE KR BE2HMHEMNE
BEMAEEREREREGREENT RN TR
FI6EMBZ[RE w2 hERWRE] -

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. During the year, less
than 30% of the Group's revenue were attributed by the Group's five
largest customers and approximately 65% of the Group’s purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers in respect of our direct
sales and approximately 22% of the Group's purchases were attributed by
the largest supplier.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their respective
close associates or any shareholder who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest suppliers of
the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB2,394,000 (2020: RMB772,000).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and Mr. Lam Kwong Wai will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Changes in Information of Directors

There is no change in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the directors’ and the chief executive’s interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

EERREETHRAERKR®G - HERSG
REEE KR
R_ZE_—F+_A=+—H ZSES=REST
A BRAR RIS H AR 2 i8HEE (1R(FEH K
HAE GO B H R EEES ) EXVEFTRES)
ZBAn - BRI D REBEEFE R IFEIREE S &
EEPIE32ERELHERBET 2 ELMAR
BEEBHARIHERAR ([BRFT]) FH L
MARA ([ WA D Kk +E 2 EmETA
BERHETBSF X HNEESTANZRESFR) A
FBITHE RN R KRBT 2w ROX B &S
T

Long position in shares of the Company RAEXRRGZHR
Number of Percentage of
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERSG HERITRG
EEnE 54 EEME =] ZBEDH
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 252,051,460 17.21%
2B EE EmfEAA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note) 844,988,832 57.70%
S HlEE R (M)
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy Beneficial owner 297,000 0.02%

BRI/ NE EmEAA

Note: The 844,988,832 shares comprise:

(a) 540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”).
United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
through his controlled corporations and as to 20% by certain family
members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder brother of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in which United Goal

is interested.

(b) 304,988,832 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”),
which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same

parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company:

REFZRHERIATHREZRR
g

RoF-—#+=A=+-8 FHAL(FE
EARAEERBBTRAR) RARAZRH
FABBIR A 3 1R R 4 T S ) 58 336 15
RERHRERT 2 ERMALAE AT LR
FERHR AT -

Long position in shares of the Company REAQABDRGBZHER
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
BERAG HEBITRSE
8 B REEtE £ 4= ZBEDE
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 3) 540,000,000 36.87%
BEmEE A (MFE3)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest of controlled corporation 540,000,000 36.87%
(“Asia Prime"”) (Notes 1 and 3)
RPEHEE S (51 %3)
Sand Cove Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 540,000,000 36.87%
("Sand Cove") (Notes 2 and 3)
REHEE R (HFE2%3)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 3) 304,988,832 20.83%
BE&=mEE A (MFE3)
Notes: Bt EE -
1. Asia Prime, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,Thomas, holds 1. Asia Prime BZISBEEMEZESZAT  EFE

80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia
Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising
540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

2. Sand Cove, which is wholly owned and directly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 100% voting power at
general meetings of Asia Prime. By virtue of the SFO, Sand Cove is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asia Prime is deemed to be

interested as set out in Note 1 above.

3. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is a director of United Goal and Sand Cove, and the

sole director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements
The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

There was no competing business of which a director of the Company had
an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

BEROSNEREE 2L
REREMSE - AAF - HERAAREEM
WBARRARNEL R EETIEMRS B
FENSE R S G ENS BTSN |
FSC15) o {8 4 28 T 3

i 22 4 84 15 o
7 55 [ 4 4F PO 36 48 5T ST (F (] AR SR 49 50 6 o

EERNBRFRG 2B
AAREFL WA EAHF LRGP EARE LD
HAIESN0MAT HE 2 s -

EERNRE  RHEREHzER

BIX[BERERS | — BN ARFE
EYHREEFMENTMNERMENARRLE
EAATPR B & RI PR AT 3L B A 42 3 AR RIS AT
REBZEARS  RFXAHT - ERXMHEE
HAEAfEE -

BT 2 AEEX
BEAARZ@HERMA  SHUEFFERE
SRR SR BT LTS 0 T B B B A B
Bz —BRAREARF AR EETEEH
& ARAEAFEBEEREAMEBE EE
MERRERBEETRRIERRE -

65



Directors’ Report (continued) &= 1§ 4 (&)

Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company (“Continuing Connected Transactions”)
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RERERS

i_j_—¢+ A=+—ALFER  RE
| AREZ TR HERT R RISE
@Q%U%%%%Q%D

1.  Tenancy Agreement HEW=
Transaction Party Name of Date of Annual caps Transaction
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms amount (Note 2) amount
KEERAH RRYHER BEAMH 8 ERLREE (M) R5EH
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR%T7) (AR®F )
Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy 26 November 2004 1 October 2004 to (a) Lease/ (@) Lease/
Department Store Limited City Plaza Co. Ltd." —zENE 30 September 2024 Rental Expense: 189,000 Rental Expense: 162,277
(oo (St Spilve sy / /
! —E- =
of 65% by the Group owned of 50% by the =¥-RFAAZTH BER* B
J:Q?xtﬁmﬁ BA7 Group (Note 1)
(TEBAR] m’ég FENBHTESERAT (b) Management Fee: 48,000 (b) Management Fee: 36,939
BT ([ LAABRHEA) — —_—
REBREASRENDA
GE
2.  Entrusted Loan Agreements EXER R
Transaction Party Name of Date of Transaction
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms Annual caps amount amount
KE@RAH REYHER L 8 EELREHE R5eE
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR¥T7) (AR®T )
Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza ()  12June 2018 () 12 June 2018to (i) 100,000 (i) Nil
FEAK (Note 1) 11 June 2021 (";;)%\933\) &
EBARATRS ZE-)\F T-N\EAAT-AE e
(KizE1) ~ATZH 71 —-FxAt-H
(i) 23June2021 (i) 23June 2021to i (ii) 100,000 (i) 50,000
22 June 2024 (Note 4)
—T-% —Z--FRA-1ZBE (Fii4)
~AZT=H ZR-mERAZTZR
Notes:
1. Shanghai Ongoing is owned as to 5% by F/B N B (£E)ER A A EAKE DFAE (RE)BERAR (LA

(Shanghai Joinbuy Group Co., Ltd.") (“Joinbuy Group") and 30% by L&
NE RN BB A A (Shanghai Joinbuy Co., Ltd.") (“Joinbuy Co.”). Joinbuy
Group and Joinbuy Co. (whose controlling shareholder is Joinbuy Group),
being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are connected
persons of the Company at the subsidiary level. As Shanghai Joinbuy City
Plaza is owned as to 12% by Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Co.,
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza is an associate of Joinbuy Co. and a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing
Rules.

2. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the

announcement “Renewal of Annual Cap” of the Company dated
18 December 2018.
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3. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps which was expired on
11 June 2021 were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
12 June 2018.

4. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2021 and its supplemental

announcement dated 28 June 2021.

" The English name is translated for identification purpose only

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

To the extent the transactions disclosed above which are also related party
transactions as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, these related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Certain related party transactions in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, taking into
consideration to the Company's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 1,167 employees,
with 1,162 stationed in mainland China and 5 in Hong Kong. Staff costs
(excluding directors’ emoluments) amounted to RMB191.3 million (2020:
RMB155.6 million) for the year. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its
employees are competitive and in line with the market trend and its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

In November 2019, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") was appointed as
the auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy following the resignation of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Save as disclosed above, there were no
changes in auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by

PwC. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to reappoint PwC as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

18 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 76 to 162 comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

J the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As further detailed in note 17 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group holds equity interests in certain associated
companies herein referred to as "Beiren Group”. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group recognised a share of profits of associates
of RMB237.3 million and carried RMB3,095.1 million investments in
associates on the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, of which RMB235.8 million of the share of profits of
associates for the year and RMB3,089.9 million of the carrying value of
investments in associates as at 31 December 2021 were attributable to the
Beiren Group.

In 2019, the Group made a full expected credit loss allowance, net of
deferred tax credit (“Full Impairment”) against the entire overdue trade
receivable balances due from three PRC companies (“Debtors”) of the
Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”), for the purpose of recognising the
Group's share of results of the Beiren Group. Such Trade Receivables are
guaranteed by the ultimate beneficial owner of the Debtors (the
"Guarantor”). The impact of the Full Impairment on the Group's share of
losses of associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0 million respectively.

We have previously qualified our auditor’s report on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
due to a limitation of scope as we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidences on whether any adjustments were necessary to the
carrying amount of the Trade Receivables of nil balance and the related
deferred tax credit in respect of the Full Impairment, which had
consequential impact on (i) the Group's share of profits of associates for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and the carrying value of its
investments in associates as at that date; (i) the Group's profit attributable
to owners and profit attributable to non-controlling interests in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2020; and (iii) the equity
attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling interests
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, there has been no additional information or development in
relation to the recoverability of the Trade Receivables due from the
Debtors. Accordingly, the Group’s management considered the Full
Impairment of the Trade Receivables of the Beiren Group brought forward
is still appropriate as at 31 December 2021.
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However, the Group’s management was not able to provide us with
adequate evidence with respect to the financial conditions of the Debtors
and the Guarantor up to the date of this report, including the financial
information of the Debtors to date, details of other assets (including
nature, amounts, and claims or pledges against such assets, if any) of the
Guarantor that could be pursued to settle the outstanding Trade
Receivables due to the Beiren Group. We were therefore unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary to assess
the recoverable amounts of the Trade Receivables. Given the
abovementioned scope limitations, there were no other satisfactory
procedures that we could perform to determine whether any adjustments
were necessary to the Trade Receivables of nil balance and the related
deferred tax credit in respect of the Full Impairment as at 31 December
2021 which consequentially impacted (i) the Group's share of profits of
associates for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the carrying value of
its investments in associates as at that date; (ii) the Group's profit
attributable to owners and profit attributable to non-controlling interests in
the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021; and (iii) the
Group’s equity attributable to owners of the Company and the
non-controlling interests on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to share of results of
associates and investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group
(except for the share of loss allowance on expected credit loss, net of
deferred tax credit as mentioned under “Basis for Qualified Opinion”).
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Key Audit Matter
BRET BN

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESFNAHBEARETSRETERE

Share of results of associates and investments in
associates in respect of Beiren Group (except for the
share of loss allowance on expected credit loss, net of
deferred tax credit ("Full Impairment”) of certain trade
receivables as mentioned under "Basis for Qualified
Opinion”)
FRLASENELBEAREERNBE ARNRE (R
BERNERIFARE TERUERNARCEESRTRE
IHEEEE (HREENREER) ([ 28EED BHERIM)

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
SEEEVBHREMTET -

The Group has equity interests in a group of companies
herein referred to as "Beiren Group”) which were accounted
for as associates under the equity method. The Beiren
Group's principal activities include operation of department
stores and supermarkets. The results of the Beiren Group is
highly dependent on the revenues derived from its retail
operations which typically comprise of high volume of low-
value transactions.
EEENATRBRMHLASER | 2 —EAXRhHEARE  BIE
BEETEARIEBREQR - LAEBEZZXBEHRK
EREENET IAEENEERR/KBETEEBEL
Wil ATEEB—REFHREESNEBERS -

The significance of the share of results and investments in the
Beiren Group's results warrants significant audit effort in this
area.
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Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter, amongst
other procedures, include but not limited to:

HPIRIB I ERETFENESIET (BREEMER) 2FET
R

° Discussing with Group management and the Beiren
Group management to understand the performance and
significant events of the Beiren Group during the year in
order to identify risks that are significant to the Group.

O BEEETRERIASEEREETI® AT
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. In relation to revenue recognition,

MR IBA L

° obtaining an understanding of the processes and
controls over revenue recognition;

TR ATER R BE MBI

° testing the key controls of IT systems and controls
over revenue recognition; and
BB MR R R WA RERIZE S EaE 28T
K

o testing revenue transactions by different revenue
streams, on a sample basis, to relevant supporting
documents such as contractual agreements,
invoices and cash settlement records.

AT - FRARMRAR - BRAR S B84
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o Assessing whether the financial information of the Beiren
Group was prepared in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies and reviewing adjustments to
conform to the Group's accounting policies.
AHEILASBEMBEEERE SEEITHREE -
WEMHEBHAE  UAFae ESENSHBUR -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that, in the
context of our audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements, the Group's share of results of associates and
investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group (except
for the share of Full Impairment of certain trade receivables as
mentioned under “Basis for Qualified Opinion”) were
supported by the available evidence.
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about (i) the Group's
share of profits of associates for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the carrying value of its investments in associates as at that date; (i) the
Group's profit attributable to owners and profit attributable to
non-controlling interests in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2021; and (iii) the Group's equity attributable to owners of the Company
and the non-controlling interests on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021. Accordingly, we are unable to
conclude whether or not the other information is materially misstated with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s

report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a

body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %5 37 # £ £ 5} &5(4&)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMEEKRER

forthe year ended 31 December 2021 HZE T - —F + - A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-THF
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥T T ARBFT
Revenue W A 4 1,299,736 1,124,020
Cost of sales SHE R AR (509,374) (442,623)
Gross profit EH 790,362 681,397
Other income, gains and losses HA WA - e K Eie 6 130,473 103,296
Selling and distribution costs iHE Ko $HRCAR (523,725) (408,790)
Administrative expenses G (238,269) (156,081)
Interest and investment income MERZERA 7 51,331 54,825
Share of profit of a joint venture [EME—HE B EEF 18 28,300 24,211
Share of profits of associates FE A B & 1 R A 17 237,251 221,879
Finance costs B A 8 (27,895) (25,350)
Profit before taxation Bk 75 AT v ) 447,828 495,387
Taxation A 9 (123,253) (113,820)
Profit for the year REE 5 F 10 324,575 381,567
Other comprehensive income/(expense) HEiemizs (F)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to B AJaEEFH N EEIER
profit or loss: = I
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEBINEBRES
foreign operations ZIEHZ5 301 (143)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the REEEMEEME
year (FAX) 301 (143)
Total comprehensive income for the year NEFE2EK @A 324,876 381,424
Profit for the year attributable to: REZREMERN
Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEZ P =N 143,393 212,748
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR 181,182 168,819
324,575 381,567
Total comprehensive income attributable to: JEAE 2 W R
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIE SN 143,694 212,605
Non-controlling interests JEE AR = 181,182 168,819
324,876 381,424
Earnings per share for profit attributable to owners AR &#H A G EF 2
of the Company BREMN
— Basic and diluted — ERREE RMB A R # RMB A E#
13 0.0987t 0.1457T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

at31 December2021 A —E-—F+-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—F —ZEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5+ AR®T R ARBET T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WmE - BE R&E 14 5,501,009 5,049,886
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 2,404,868 2,576,030
Investment property KEME 16 1,292,427 —
Investments in associates REEE RRIMIEE 17 3,095,104 2,876,956
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELEMNKTE 18 372,045 371,169
Deferred tax assets RIEFTBE BE 20 5,045 3,356
Other receivables H b pE U FOR 21 5,349 1,534
12,675,847 10,878,931
Current assets mENE E
Inventories FE 22 102,073 69,490
Properties under development BRPYE 19 - 1,346,322
Trade and other receivables JFEE U5 Bl SR R EL Ath B LK
KIB 21 285,389 207,096
Amount due from associates JE U Bt 2 B FNTE 24 110,865 94,655
Financial assets at fair value through profit or BATEFAERZ
loss SREE 25 — 86,500
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEEEEY 26 1,858,198 1,906,907
2,356,525 3,710,970
Current liabilities mENaE
Trade and other payables JRE 1T B R R L At S
KIB 27 1,461,974 1,120,543
Amount due to a joint venture B —MAEEERE 23 47,735 33,227
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of B AR —%
subsidiaries FEHE AR R 2 3R I8 31 26,142 26,142
Tax payable JE IR 26,902 31,550
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE ——FR
FIIHA 28 100,000 60,000
Lease liabilities HEEBE 29 100,521 101,245
Contract liabilities B E 30 12,260 9,093
1,775,534 1,381,800
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITIEE — —F1&IH 28 2,240,000 2,340,000
Lease liabilities HEEBE 29 188,407 305,182
Deferred tax liabilities FEIER I E 20 48,085 31,220
2,476,492 2,676,402
10,780,346 10,531,699

FIBEPEKEARLE —E-—FFR8K
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %= & 1 7% it i &(4)
at31 December2021 A —ZE-—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥TF T ARETT

Capital and reserves BN HE
Share capital & 7R 32 6,291 6,291
Reserves s 9,328,766 9,185,072
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARGEB AEML R 9,335,057 9,191,363
Non-controlling interests FEER M & 1,445,289 1,340,336
10,780,346 10,531,699

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 162 were approved ~ S76E12BRA M B HRBEEFTEN T ——
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2022 and ~ F=H+/\R#t/ERKETIZE - T HTIEERK

were signed on its behalf by: REE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy
BIEEEE BRI /A
Executive Director Non-Executive Director
BITEE JEMITES
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREREER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z= =& = —

— =

F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAREAEERS
Statutory
surplus Capital Capital Non-
Share Share reserve  redemption Reserve  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium (note 33) reserve (note 33) reserve profits Total interests Total
EERS
LHE &% ERffE FER
BE  RGEE (Hit33) WERE (W) BERE  REER @it i @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETE ARETL ARETL ARETR ARETIT AR¥Tr ARETRT AR¥TLT ARETL
At 1 January 2020 WZZZZF-A-B 6201 6543132 126,243 593 78719 (115,520) 2,339,300 8978758 1,211,151 10,249,909
Profit for the year AR - - - - - - 212,748 212,748 168,819 381,567
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEREM2ERY - - - - - (143) - (143) - (143)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income forthe AN EE 2 (%), /Wi
year - - - - - 4y 22748 212605 168819 381424
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders ~ BRFEERREEFRE - - - - - - - - (99,634) (99,634)
Transfer of reserves BREE — — 6,991 — — — (6,991) — — —
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZZEF+-A=+-BR
—Z_-5-f-H 620 6,543,132 133234 593 78,719 (115,663) 2,545,057 9,191,363 1,340,336 10,531,699
Profit for the year REFREA - - - - - - 143393 143393 181,182 324,575
Other comprehensive income for the year REREBZENE - - - - - 301 - 301 — 301
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFRARBER — — — — — 301 143,393 143,694 181,182 324,876
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders B RFERRREEARE - — - - - - - - (76,229 (76,229)
Transfer of reserves BREE — — 6,837 — — — (6,837) — — —
At 31 December 2021 WZZ2--%+-A=+-H 629 6,543,132 140,071 593 78,719 (115,362) 2,681,613 9,335,057 1445289 10,780,346

FIRPERERRAT

—E--FEH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

forthe year ended 31 December 2021 HZE T - —F + - A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBEFT
Operating activities X
Profit before taxation KR4 B A 447,828 495,387
Adjustments for: SEAEHAT R -
Interest income on bank deposits WITFHZFBHA (50,709) (45,547)
Interest income from a joint venture —BEEREZFERA (459) (575)
Investment income from financial assets at fair value through BRATEFAEZ 2SR
profit or loss BEMEERA (163) (6,175)
Interest income from loan receivables FEUE TR F B A - (2,528)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEagMaZE 19,025 25,350
Net exchange loss FIE HEE 2,008 5,556
Gain on lease modification BEIHEHHEAWE (16,953) (15,320)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BERERETE 132,629 104,856
Depreciation of investment property BEMERE 5,128 —
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREGENE 125,499 119,534
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BERSEZ
18 706 616
Share of profit of a joint venture BlE—HEAERERET (28,300) (24,211)
Share of profits of associates FEEEE R B R (237,251) (221,879)
Reversal of loss allowance on expected credit losses for trade YRR 2 BEEEEE
receivables BiEEmE (228) (345)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital HEACEPRIKERS
e 398,760 434,719
Increase in inventories HFEEMN (32,583) (7,805)
Increase in properties under development BRERAPYEEM (20,973) (84,327)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables JRE MK BR R K% Lt B M k0B
(48m),/m (71,688) 66,935
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to a joint venture EN—MAECERA
/(R 14,508 (13,604)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables JES BRI E At JE 3R IA
2,/ 0 ) 164,672 (6,445)
Increase in contract liabilities EHEEEM 3,167 263
Cash generated from operations KEEBRERE 455,863 389,736
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BHTBCEMER (112,725) (97,312)
Net cash from operating activities CEERSEEFH 343,138 292,424
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) %48 &% 8 X&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®ET AREFT
Investing activities REEE
Interest received on bank deposits BURRITERZFE 39,768 41,939
Dividend received from associates MEE AR Z B WA E 2,893 59,019
Dividend received from a joint venture R—BRELEZEWERE 27,424 31,574
Interest received from a joint venture R-—HEEERCEZERFE 459 575
Investment income received from financial assets at fair value REATEF AN BRZZ 2/
through profit or loss BEZBUIRERA 912 10,286
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME  BEREE (199,183) (171,049)
Additions of right-of-use assets NEEREEE — (56,710)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through HERDTEFABEZ
profit or loss SREEMBRA 86,500 1,302,695
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BERAFE;AABRZ
TREE - (908,215)
Repayment of loan from a joint venture —HAENEZEREE 50,000 60,000
Loan advance to a joint venture m—HABRLENBNER (50,000) (60,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEVE - BE KRERS
B 40 222
Additional investment in an associate MR R RREINEE - (3,643)
Receipt of loan and interest receivables Uz o) fE W B 3R K LS — 86,608
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities WEES (FTH),/ERE
Pt (41,187) 393,301
Financing activities BMEEH
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (60,000) (30,000)
Repayments of principal elements of leases liabilities BERE E%Zﬁ’i\ﬁ‘ﬁ’ﬁ (96,646) (95,276)
Interest on leases liabilities paid HEBBZERFB (19,025) (25,350)
Other interest paid = iﬁn‘ﬁmﬂ ) (97,053) (108,542)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BRI 44 IR IR AR R AR B (76,229) (99,634)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEZHARSFE (348,953) (358,802)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BekBeEEWORD)/
BT (47,002) 326,923
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNHRERASEEY 1,906,907 1,585,685
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference [ER=R/SE (1,707) (5,701)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FHRBENBEEED 1,858,198 1,906,907

FIBEPEKEARLE —E-—FFR8K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M R

forthe year ended 31 December 2021 HZE T - —F + - A=+—HILFE

82

General

Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2016 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are set out in section headed
"Corporate Information” to the annual report. The Company acts as
an investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the operation of “Jiuguang” department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas (“Mr. Lau”), who is also the Chairman and executive director
of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is the functional currency of the Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of those
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCO") (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for the financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), which
are measured at fair value. The preparation of consolidated
financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a)
(i)

FRTERERRAF

Basis of preparation (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9, HKAS
39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and position for the
current and prior year and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZE T —_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective
The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

New standards and amendments

2

FTESTHREBE (&)

(@) WwREE(H)
(i) BEMEERLERZEETE
B BHREER
AEBEHARREAATER
B MR Z IERT EBRT
BamELER :

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RISz &BR

MERRET ZETHEEN

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-related rent concessions 1 April 2021
beyond 2021

BEMBREEFE 1658 (BRTE) T —F%ZCOVD-1ERASER —E-—-FMA—H

Annual improvement project
FESERR “E-N\F—

FELE

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37
(Amendments)

EAVBRELREIG BESE
AIEE 1657 R BB EFTERE 375 (IBFIA)

W& B

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BB ERE 1R (BRIAX)

HKFRS 17

ERUMBREERFE7R RBRAEH

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BEGHENE IR LB ENBREENE S UREKE
B#EH25%
HKAS 8

RTS8 SEHAATER

HKAS 12

Annual improvement 2018-2020 cycle
“ETFEN

Narrow-scope amendments

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

HAEEDERRBLIFRE

Insurance contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred tax related to assets and

1 January 2022
—FZZ%—A—H
1 January 2022

—T-—F—A—H

1 January 2023
—T-=f—-H—H

1 January 2023
—F-=Z%—-H—H

1 January 2023
—T-=f—-H—H
1 January 2023
“E-=F—f—H

1 January 2023

liabilities arising from a single

transaction
B ENE 129
BT IE

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BE-RFELZEENRABERRLZ

Sale or contribution of assets between

—E-=F—H—H

To be announced

an investor and its associate or joint

venture
BEEMBHRELANEZI0ELELGE REERABERARREELE L SN
Bl 52858 ({5 A%) FEEHESFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a)

(b)

FRTERERRAF

Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
Management is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new standards and amendments
in the period of initial application. These new standards
and amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial

statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and a joint venture used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

“E--FER

2

TESTERBE (&)

(b)

Re (&)

RBELAFR —HEELEHRE
MENRIREASEYEEREY
ENNER -BENTENZAR
DEWIRE T BALERE

MED FE2E Bl A R I 2 B UK -

—RABELEE—HAERY &
It HRBEBKRIEGIEN ST - B
RERFTMEEFEHREER -
HRAEHZERBERBED ZF —
IEZZEFE’H HE EREFEEEYHE
R EBNARTED ZIEHES
ATHABNERT -

BERRAR-—HABLEZEER
EEEBERBEEGEAFALR
EMBHmE - RERG B NME
RzBERR R —HAELEZY
BHE DERERBUBRTH
R RENT  AEEERNR—
SRR - RiBREDE RN —H
BERAI—MABELEZREN
FRRAREGA M BRRRER
H 1% 1 1 38 58 DA RE SR 7R 52 () JE A5 g
ERARAELEREREMER
Hﬁz%\ - BIERREMREWE - B
RE/ ARECEZFEERDTE
AR (EZEEHERARERFAD
HAERESHBEZHRI) o WAE
EEMEE A ARREEREBIER
ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ%’&ﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬂ%
& (BRERAKRARBRZEZ R
ARAELEREFEEPIS 2
EfRMER)  AIAEEREER
HEGZE-—FPER - WAKEE
EEFEREFEFRRRZBER
ARAEBERENK  HHRBEINER
FEIE 1R

87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZE T —_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2

88

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position where the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. The revenues are
presented as revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer
purchases the goods at the department stores.

For income from concessionaire sales, the Group recognises
commission income over time which it is entitled and is based
on certain percentage of sales made by the concessionaires in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When they fail to
meet the minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of certain contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income as it is the amount that the Group has
the right to receive.

For service income, it represents income from concessionaires
for displaying their products and billboards in department
stores. The revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including obligation to provide goods or services
to customers on complementary basis and customer’s options
to acquire additional goods or services for free or at a
discount in future granted under loyalty reward program, the
Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer.

Accounting for unredeemed gift certificates and reward
points under customer loyalty program

The unredeemed gift certificates and reward points under
customer loyalty program is recorded as contract liabilities,
and reflect the value that is expected to be redeemed, i.e.
anticipated breakage.

Breakage will need to be estimated considering the guidance
on constraining estimates of variable consideration as well as
the Group's historical experience with gift certificates and
loyalty points under loyalty reward program. Revenue is
recognised in regard to breakage in the proportion of gift
certificates and loyalty points redeemed in that period and
likely to result in the acceleration of revenue when the
possibility of redemption becomes remote.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled.

The amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group updates the estimated transaction price based on
issued statements to consignors and concessionaires
(including assessment of whether the variable consideration is
constrained) to represent fairly the circumstances present at
the end of the reporting period.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods or
services before these good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or services by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that goods or services is transferred to the customers. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire sales as the
Group does not control the specific goods provided by the
consignors and concessionaires before goods are transferred
to a customers.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method over the following useful lives:
Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms or
40 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms or
improvements 10 years
Plant and machinery ~ 5to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5years
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of
right-of-use assets provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost comprises right-of-use
assets, development and construction expenditure, borrowing
costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price at which the property can be realised less related
expenses.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to

write off the cost of the investment properties over their

estimated useful lives. ltems of investment property are after

taking into account their estimated residual value, using

straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms or
40 years

Land use right Over the lease terms
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(e)

()

Investment property (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probably that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At the date of
reclassification, its cost and accumulated depreciation are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and become its
cost and accumulated depreciation for accounting purposes.
If an owner- occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Such determination is made on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement, regardless of whether
the arrangements take the legal form of a lease.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis.

(i) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

J fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
and

J payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee,
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

()

(i)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar term and
condition.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the Group as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until
effective. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the followings:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on a
straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets linked to owner occupied buildings
are measured applying the cost model relevant to that
specific class of property, plant and equipment.

Low value lease

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss.

The Group as lessor

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

()

v)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land under operating leases, are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payment for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
"prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is
under finance lease.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal of the foreign operation.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(h)

0]

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and a joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Group considers the lease as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, so there is no net
temporary difference at inception. Subsequently, as
differences arise on settlement of the liability and the
amortisation of the leased asset, there will be a net temporary
difference on which deferred tax is recognised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are estimated
individually, or when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI")
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

FRTERERRAF

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI or designated as
FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset which is included in the “interest and
investment income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 37 for further details.

Significant increase in crediit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.
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FRTERERRAF

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(o) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

FRTERERRAF

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a joint venture and amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

FRTERERRAF

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees render the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade
and other receivables are generally due for settlement within
30 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial
instruments and short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Significant estimates and assumptions concerning the future may be
required in selecting and applying accounting methods and policies
in these financial statements. The Group bases its estimates and
assumptions on historical experience and various other assumptions
that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates or assumptions.
The following is a review of the more significant estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements.
(a) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward
tax losses
At 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB651,728,000 (2020: RMB589,649,000)
available for offset against future profits. For the year ended
31 December 2020, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of tax losses due to unpredictability of
future profit streams of relevant entities. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the group reviewed previously
unrecognised tax losses and determined that it was now
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised. As a consequence, a deferred
tax asset of RMB4,000,000 was recognised for these losses.
The realisation of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously estimated, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
the revised estimate takes place.
FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

3.

B i R M
REBFEREAMAR  SEEAHER
ATNHEREEZHRREMHZEN - E
BT FI B S AR T A

BB G A RBER AR SRR Z
EPBHERE  AREFREHABARD
BEAREFEBR - AKENRBEBELR
&EMEEM%I%TEFAEZyEE
R A RRR - BRER

G HEZEGHFRBRAR -

T — A R S B RAR R E
Zeofhst RER -

(@) ZERIBEBRZELHREERS

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8" XK
SEERPABEEBEBOARE
651,728,0007T (ZZT=FF : ARK
589,649,0007T) + A] FAYEK I B &%
M-FE—_ZT-_TF+_F=1+—
BIEFE BREEEEAZETR
MEHATER - B ERZERE
BEERELCHBEEE BHE-T
——H4+-_A=+—HLEFE &
EECEM A AERNFEES
I & TF 3 5 R 7] A8 5 e RR Bk A1 A

ARIESET B ARIEEE - Bt - 5t
ZEBERRECHBEEARE

4,000,000, °
EREMBEE 2 EREBIURNA

BT A ERDE N R
Hir 25 o i DR ERBOE N
HERNERHEZRREAAERS
ﬁ@@iiﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%'
A B HER K IME T (At 2 AR
RIBEHER ©

13



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZE T —_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(b) Provision for ECL of trade receivables
The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings/past due status as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group's historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable supportable
and available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision for ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about ECL and the Group's trade receivables are
disclosed in note 21 and 37 respectively.

4 Revenue
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to customers, net of discounts and sales related
taxes, income from concessionaire sales, service income and rental
income during the year, and is analysed as follows:

3.

BA RS Bk T I H i ()

(b) EURREHMEFEFEZRE

7 65 [ {66 PR 9 4R AE B = 5 B I BR X
ZEMEEER - BEEARRE
BB REE - BEAR
UEBEANTRESAETTHAE -
BRBEEEENAEBELENEX -
WEBAEBEN BTG ENKAHL
BRRAABRBzAEL AR EZA
BUHEHN REEREEY B8
RENEGEHNNGE  AEEER
ZEETETIUNEE - I HEE
RNEBRREERE BB RRE
BEHEEERIEERFE -

TEHEEEE BB G EEHA
EHEM - EREREEBELE
SEEWERERZER  DRIRWE
2137 E -

WA
WAEBAREEFARAETHEERNE
W % FE MR R AT 30 I S S AR R R B~ 7R
BRFEBEEZRA  REKRAU LR
EWRA - BT

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARBFTT

Recognised at a point in time: EREERB R
Sales of goods — direct sales ERHE —BEHEE 568,676 502,890

Recognised over time: PEE R ERR

Income from concessionaire sales REBHFEREHEE Z WA 585,289 515,384
Service income AR 75U A 38,247 34,063
Revenue from contracts with customers KEZEFPAHZIA 1,192,212 1,052,337
Rental income HEWA 107,524 71,683
Total revenue U A 1,299,736 1,124,020

14

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

4 Revenue (continued)
All the above revenue is derived in the PRC.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

o For sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has been transferred to customers, being at the point
the customer purchases goods at department stores.
Payment of transaction price is due immediately at the point
the customer purchases the goods.

J Income from concessionaire sales is generated from sales of
goods by the relevant concessionaires based on certain
percentage of sales in accordance with the terms of contracts.
When the concessionaires fail to meet the minimum
guarantee income in accordance with the terms of contracts,
the minimum guarantee amount is recognised as income. The
Group recognised revenue in the net amount of consideration
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for the
service, which is the commission it is entitled upon the sale of
goods by the concessionaire. The concessionaire
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the
Group's performance in processing each sales transaction as
and when each transaction is processed.

o Service income is generated from the Group's promotion,
product display and billboards services at its department
stores. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time.

o Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZE T —_—F+_A=+—HILFE

116

Segment information

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “"Operating Segments” focusing
on operation of department stores, retailing and related business as
well as property investment in the PRC. This operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs
as disclosed in note 2, that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM") (i.e. the chief executive of the
Company). The CODM regularly reviews revenue analysis and the
profit for the year of the Group as a whole to make decisions about
resource allocation. Accordingly, no separate segment information
other than entity-wide information is presented.

The Group’s non-current assets are all based in the PRC. The Group
has no customers that contributed over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group for both years.

Other income, gains and losses

7 ERE R

BEDH - &
ARFELERERE T8 HEEXBKN
REIRE - W& D BB T a0 MY E 2P 3
B REGEBEMBRSENNEHK
RRHENPEERERETE  UHERLE
REN([EERERRAD(AARENE
FBITE) EHEH - BEREEREAES
EREXEBEONMEAEEERF RN
MMEHERDBORE - AW E27 H
BRAINOE R 2 &EE R -

REBNIERBEERIBAFBR AEM -
PREFE  AEBUYETSERBBAAL
EEBUA10% °

Hiblg A ~ M R EE

2021 2020
—E=—F —TTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBETF T
Management fee income EIEE WA 56,818 43,275
Credit card recharges ERAFRERLDH 27,158 21,880
Project income SEREN N 3,460 2,347
Government subsidies (note) BT 4 B (P %) 3,620 8,808
Net exchange loss SHIE H BB (2,008) (5,556)
Income from lessees R 8 EME AR WA 811 1,134
Gain on lease modification BRI EHZE W= 16,953 15,320
Others H A 23,661 16,088
130,473 103,296

Note: B 5

The amount represents government subsidies received from the PRC local
authorities for subsidising its operational activities by the Group. All of them had

no specific condition attached.

ZEBR/TEIMNE RS THBITHE - (EARSE
BT EESIESMMB o AT B I A4 R
Bt hn e o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

7 Interest and investment income FMERERERA
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBEFT
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZF B WA 50,709 45,547
Interest income from a joint venture ke —EaEREZMEWA 459 575
Investment income from financial assets at HAFEFABRZZ S@MEE
FVTPL ZIREWA 163 6,175
Interest income from loan receivables R E W F B U A — 2,528
51,331 54,825
8 Finance costs =2
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Interest expenses on: FIERX
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 105,873 108,492
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 19,025 25,350
124,898 133,842
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction in  J& : REELE N ERF
progress and properties under MEZERLERR
development (97,003) (108,492)
27,895 25,350

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing costs

incurred on borrowings whose funds were specifically invested in the

construction in progress and properties under development during

the year. The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of

borrowing costs to be capitalised is the interest rate applicable to

the Group's specific borrowings during the year, i.e. 4.41%-4.46%

(2020: 4.40%-4.46%).

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

BERLEERARIERARFANRERER
TREIBNEEFMENBEESHEL
MIEERR - ARETEH TFERENER
RAESBENEN R ABARAEEFER
STERBR 2R B441%4.46% (T =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZE T —_—F+_A=+—HILFE

9 Taxation 9 ®HE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARETTT
The tax charge comprises: MIEXHBETIEE
Current tax: REAFRIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HEBEMRSH 107,440 94,976
Withholding tax FEHIH 657 716
108,097 95,692
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BAEFETR(B%) B -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BRI " (19
Withholding tax R (31) 20
(20) 1
Deferred tax charge (note 20) FEIERTE S B (M5E20) 15,176 18,127
123,253 113,820

RIBFFPRHCEMESTE((REMRBRED
MEZERBEEBEIED - NP EFEF
B[ B A R AT R B25% °

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

AEBEWEPBEASNE M RIEE ERA)ZE
BELERDUET R B EAEHHIA
Bith o

No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made as the
Group has no assessable taxable profits arising from operations
outside the PRC.
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Taxation (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

BiE ()

AERRBEXHELRS

B kHEM2EK

SR PRERT AR M 2 H R

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREF T
Profit before taxation R 5 A ) ) 447,828 495,387
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% R ERER25% 1 E 2 Bi1E 111,957 123,847
Tax effect of share of profit of a joint EfE—RaB&rERoBiE
venture =24 (7,075) (6,053)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates ~ FE{GEEE A Fla Fll 2 BB E (59,313) (55,415)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax DARBRBA Z RIEZE
purpose (2,493) (3,743)
Tax effect of expense not deductible fortax FAIFIFRFA S 2 FHIBFE
purpose 13,846 17,357
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised THERREFEZHETE 56,509 25,196
Tax effect of recognition of previously HREAAERNRIEBBEZ
unrecognised tax losses MIETE (4,000) —
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFEECBZ),/ TREE (20) 1
Withholding tax BN 12,694 11,287
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses FARRMAERHEBE,
previously not recognised MIAR 2 (42) (6)
Tax effect of previously unrecognised ERIRBEROGRIEEE 2
temporary differences MEZE 1,190 1,349
Tax charge for the year REEHIAZ B 123,253 113,820

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZE T —_—F+_A=+—HILFE

10

120

Profit for the year

10

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6 B R
ARFERFE B (GEA) THIEER

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARETTT
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): FE=M (MEE11) -
Fees we 666 714
Salary and allowances e MoERL 5,534 4,832
Bonus AT 10,633 8,487
Retirement benefits scheme RIRAE N ET B R
contributions — 1
16,833 14,034
Other staff costs, excluding retirement BRIRRRB AT BRI 2
benefits scheme contributions Hh B TR 183,265 148,474
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, R k4@ FIl5T B4 50R0Z UK
net of forfeited contributions for staff 8 THZX 8,038 7,125
191,303 155,599
Total staff costs BB TR 208,136 169,633
Auditor’s remuneration % E RN & 2,710 3,486
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BENRREZITE
equipment 132,629 104,856
Depreciation of investment property KEMEZINE 5,128 —
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZINE 125,499 119,534
Reversal of loss allowance on expected EWERRZEREEEERD
credit losses for trade receivables (228) (345)
Expenses related to variable lease TNAIEHEENH
payments 47,275 30,483
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  WELRBZEE
equipment 706 616
Gain on lease modification BRI EGRTEA 2 Was (16,593) (15,320)
Expenses relating to low-value leases REEBEBE ZHEBRXZ 606 788
Expenses relating to short-term leases MEHE ZEERX 335 294
Cost of inventories recognised as expense MR A 2 FEMK A 471,605 410,504
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

11 Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 11 ES - HRUTEREEME
remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed RREAE AR R RES R REDIHRER
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and HKCO, is as follows: WAFEEERERATEMNEOT :
2021 —E-—5F
Non-
Executive  Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
HITESE FYTES BYFHTES
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung, Chan Chor Lam  Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas*  Ling, Amy Kwong Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
Bk 9y REB®K R RIRX RER #st

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARMTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR¥T:R

Fees e 166 125 125 125 125 666
Other emoluments HAh B &
Salaries and other benefits e REMWEN 5,534 - - - - 5,534
Bonus* Tesr* 10,633 - - - - 10,633
Contributions to retirement RIRREME BIHER
benefits schemes - - - - - -
Total emoluments [t 16,333 125 125 125 125 16,833
2020 —E-EF
Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
WTEE FWTES BUFMTES
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung,  Chan Chor Lam Kwong Yuet Man,  Cheung Mei
Thomas * Ling, Amy Wai Raymond Han Total
Ell-Sry R HEES IR REMH #t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARBTE AREBTRE ARETRT ARETRE ARETRE ARETR

Fees e 178 134 134 134 134 714
Other emoluments HipEi&
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 4832 — — — — 4,832
Bonus* TE4L* 8,487 — — — — 8,487
Contributions to retirement RIREFGE B
benefits schemes 1 — — — — 1
Total emoluments [rllearak ] 13,498 134 134 134 134 14,034
* The bonus is determined having regard to the Group's and the executive * AN SRERBARERNTESTESS
director’s performance for each of the reporting period. FmEHNRREMET -
# Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the chief executive of the Company. # R ENMBARBNERRITE °
The executive director’'s emoluments shown above were for his NEREABRHATERNARR RAEHE
services as the chief executive in connection with the management ERSTEHREMBREZ2ATESZME -

of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
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11

122

Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 11
remuneration (continued)

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were for their services as

directors of the Company.

During the current year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2020: Same). None of the
directors has waived any remuneration during the year (2020: Same).
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, one of them (2020: one) was a director of the
Company whose remuneration is disclosed above and the remaining
four (2020: four) are employees of the Group, details of whose

EX -ERFUTEREEMS
(%)

A ERRARTHERBEEES —BAEH
TEERBYIFATESHE

RAFE AREYENEENME
DA 5| R F AR R B A B IMAREE

2RSHBEBEE(CTZ_ZF  HRA) -

RAFE  REESHERANME (ZF=
TE:HRB) - BE_ZTE-_—F+=A8
=t+—RALEFE AEBEREHZRFHAL
F—R(ZTZTF —R)REARTE
F BIHER EXEEBERBTEE (ZF

remuneration were as follows: ZEF B MAAEBEEES  BEZM
SFBERINBT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARBETF T
Employees: BE
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R R EMET 4,100 3,555
Retirement benefits scheme RIRREFIFTEI R
contributions 379 97
Performance related incentive payments HRIFEMY IS 3,468 3,187
7,947 6,839
The number of the five highest paid individuals of the Group whose REBAEESHFATZHHMNFUTE

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

:

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETZTHF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AH

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7L 2 1,500,0007% 7T — 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T 2 2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T % 2,500,000 7T 2 —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$15,500,001 to HK$16,000,000 15,500,001 7T & 16,000,0007% 7T — 1
HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 19,500,001 7T % 20,000,0007% 7T 1 —

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the four highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2020: Same).

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLFE"
AEEYEANERSHEEXNHE -
MW%&?MA$EIYWBMA$EI
ZESUBBHEE(CT_FF AR -

_?—7
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12 Dividends 12
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

13 Earnings per share 13
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

B’ E
HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE "
RATRIRE ML BRBRFIERMNHEIRR
B(ZEZTF 8-

BRER
RAREBANEEGRERAREERFT)
BRI TEIEMETE

BNEFENT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of N2 AI#EA ABEARFEHEF
the Company 143,393 212,748
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-EF
‘000 ‘000
T’ TR
Number of shares KRG EE
Weighted average number of ordinary TiEA T H R
shares 1,464,449 1,464,449

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 equals to the basic earnings per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares to issue during the year (2020:
Same).

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 # &= —

14

124

= —

= _

—F+=A=t—ALFE

Property, plant and equipment 14 NE-BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor ~ Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
U
nE BE EE%E
BT NEEE RHE PET Jat:d EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARBTRT ARET:R
Cost KR
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZF-A-H 2174943 716,315 153217 60,077 5,328 3,045,076 6,154,956
Additions NE — — 107 1,136 545 337,032 338,820
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - ) (4,515) (1,188) — (5710)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-TF+-A=+-H 2,174,943 716,315 153,317 56,698 4,685 3,382,108 6,488,066
Additions RE - — 22 10,143 1,600 484,887 496,652
Transfer from property under EERYEES (H1:119)
development (note 19) 87,846 — — — — — 87,846
Transfer &% 3,153,180 — 660,611 53,204 — (3,866,995) -
Disposals/write-off e/ W — B (5,485) (1,466) - - (6,954)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZZ—§+ZA=+-H 5,415,969 716,312 808,465 118,579 6,285 — 7,065,610
Depreciation &
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZF-A-H 561,822 629,471 95,406 47,908 3,589 — 1,338,196
Provided for the year FREE 70,059 2,617 7,542 2,295 343 — 104,856
Disposals/write-off HE /S - - 0 (4,064) (801) — 4.872)
At 31 December 2020 WZEZTF+=A=+-H 631,881 654,088 102,941 46,139 3131 — 1,438,180
Provided for the year FREE 88,516 23778 17,214 2817 304 — 132,629
Disposals/write-off e/ W - B 4918) (1,287) — — (6,208)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZA=+-H 720,397 677,863 115,237 47,669 3435 - 1,564,601
Net book values REFE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZA=+-H 4,695,572 38,449 693,228 70910 2,850 - 5,501,009
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+-A=+-H 1,543,062 62,227 50,376 10,559 1,554 3,382,108 5,049,886

Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs capitalised
during the year, amounting to RMB78,897,000(2020:
RMB82,790,000).

Depreciation expense for the year includes RMB132,629,000 (2020:
RMB104,856,000) provided for property, plant and equipment,
RMB5,128,000 (2020: Nil) provided for investment property and
RMB125,499,000 (2020: RMB119,534,000) provided for right-of-use
assets. Depreciation expense of RMB29,549,000 (2020:
RMB26,260,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
RMB213,372,000 (2020: RMB189,629,000) in selling and distribution
costs and RMB20,335,000 (2020: RMB8,501,000) in administrative
expenses respectively.

FEIRBREFRADEMEZEBERAA
R#78,897,000 T (ZE-FTF : ARK
82,790,0007T) ©

REEZWERIBREADE  BELK
HIEL 2 BB & 58 AR #132,629,0007T
(ZZE=—ZF : AR¥104,856,0007C) * &
WEMEED 2 BESTEARYS,128,000
T(CE-ZFE @\ URBEREEEE
oz B S 5B AR 1125,499,0005T (= F
—TFE: AR¥119,534,0007T) © FTERL
7 RIPAH & A 32 85 A R 529,549,000 7T
(ZZ=—FF : AR¥26,260,0007T) * 78
E Ny SR AN 32 85 A R 213,372,0007T
(ZZ=_FF : AR¥189,629,0007T) X 17

BB 7 A 32 85 A R #520,335,0007T (
T AR¥8,501,0007T) °

=
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15 Right-of-use assets 15 ERAREE
Land Buildings Total
T BF et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®TR AR® TR
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2020 RZE_FTF—H—H 2,242,159 635,335 2,877,494
Addition NE 56,710 — 56,710
Amount capitalised in construction in RERIRER R
progress (59,486) — (59,486)
Lease modification BT HE Hs — (56,300) (56,300)
At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—F—H—H 2,239,383 579,035 2,818,418
Amount capitalised in construction in RERIRENMEHEEE
progress (41,591) — (41,591)
Lease modification 1EETHE = — (14,461) (14,461)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-Z—-F+=A=+—H 2,197,792 564,574 2,762,366
Depreciation weE
At 1 January 2020 RZE_TF—H—H 17,190 105,664 122,854
Provided for the year FRNEE 17,190 102,344 119,534
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F—H—H 34,380 208,008 242,388
Provided for the year FRNEE 25,670 99,829 125,499
Lease modification EFTHEHH — (10,389) (10,389)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-—%+=-A=+—-H 60,050 297,448 357,498
Net book values BREFE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZE=-—f+=ZA=+—H 2,137,742 267,126 2,404,868
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTF+=-A=1+—H 2,205,003 371,027 2,576,030
16 Investment property 16 REY=F
RMB’000
AR®TTT
Cost SR
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-Z—F—H—H —
Transfer from properties under development (note 19) WEREPYEER (H519) 1,297,555
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB--f+ZA=+—H 1,297,555
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2021 R-_ZT-_—%—H—H —
Provided for the year FREE 5,128
At 31 December 2021 R-B-Z-f+=ZA=+—H 5,128
Net book values SREFE
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-A=+—H 1,292,427
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ETF+-_HA=+—H —

HETESEARAT —2-—F5% 125
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17

126

Investment property (continued) 16 BREWE(E)
Depreciation expense of RMB5,128,000 (2020: Nil) has been S E A AREES12800TC(Z B T F :
expensed in cost of sales. ,m) I ERZERHER AT X -
The fair values of investment properties as at 31 December 2021 are RZZ_—F+_A=+—8 &AM
approximately RMB3,307,000,000 (2020: Nil). The valuation of the ZATFEL) A AREE3,307,000,0007T (ZF
Group's investment properties was determined by an independent ZEFE)  c AEERAEMEZHERSE
valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory A ERM P EBRITRENERERERA
Limited, who holds a recognised and relevant professional AETTHEEEE - 21T AR RIAEE
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category EER WIS HEGEREMES
of the investment properties being valued, at open market values. R RERNETARTE -
As at 31 December 2021, investment properties of RMB1,292,427,000 R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H K& .?‘fﬁ
(2020: Nil) were pledged to secure the Group's bank loan facilities of HEBEAARE1,292,427,000T (ZE=F
RMB2,340,000,000 (2020: Nil). TR ZEREME ﬂE?%K% EERAR
%2,340,000,0007T (= T — 2 4 : &) iR17
ERZHER -
Investments in associates 17 RBEERIANRE
2021 2020
—F--F —TITF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Unlisted, at cost JE T AR 1,228,800 1,228,800
Discount arising on acquisition of PR F R W — B2 A7)
additional interest in an associate in prior  BEAMEmE £ 2 TR
years 98,416 98,416
Gain arising on deemed disposal of interest % [E & — @i & A 7=
in an associate mES Z Wik 11,297 11,297
Share of post-acquisition profits and other ~ FE{GIIEE 25 F R EM 2
comprehensive income, net of dividends Wz HBRIRE 1,756,591 1,538,443
3,095,104 2,876,956

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
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. . . = 5 -
17 Investments in associates (continued) 17 REBERANKRE (&)
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had interests in the RIE-—FR B -_FTF+_A=+—
following associates: A AEBER TS ATHEEER
Place/country of Proportion of nominal
Form of business establishment/ Principal place of  value of issued capital/registered Proportion of
Name of entity structure mcorgzora}on operation capital voting power held Principal activities
ARAL
BRER EBGRES EMts/BX TEREHE BRTRA/ERRAEELA FsRERLA TEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Bz it Sk X —B--f it Sk 33

Shijiazhuang Beiguo Renbai  Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a
Group Company group of companies
Limited” (“Beiren engaging in the
Group") (note a) operation of

department stores,
supermarkets

REHLBANBEEAER  EMAL el P 49% 9% 49% 9% REBEERETERZ
EGINGIG AN ) SENAZRERR
(Fizta)

Beiguo Shangcheng Incorporation PRC PRC 16.05% 16.05% 16.05% 16.05%  Investment holding of a
Company Limited" group of companies
("Beiguo”) (note b) engaging in the

operation of
department stores,
supermarkets

LEERRH FEERIL i i 16.05% 16.05% 16.05% 1605% HEARERBAEHEZ

(MeE) (W&b\ SENAZRERR

Hebei Beiguo Future Mall - Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Retailing business in the
Company Limited? PRC
("Future Mall") (note ¢)

MLAERRTREARE  HMKL W TH 49% 49% 49% 9% EFRRERERE
07 (X FKS)

GED)

Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a
company engaging in
operation of
restaurants in the PRC

BEERAT Bl Ava A HE 50% 50% 50% 50% HEREAZREEEIZA
A REER

Notes P 5

(a) At 31 December 2021, the Group's 60% (2020: 60%) owned subsidiary, (a) Rn= Tf_@'f‘ A=+—8 A&£EHEHE
Wingold Limited, indirectly held equity interest of 49% (2020: 49%) in Beiren 0% (ZTEZTF : 60%) Bz 2 B AR
Group. The Group does not participate in the management of the day-to- CHERARMEFGIEAEE9% (ZF -
day operation of the operating entities within Beiren Group. TF 49%) RAEZ - AEBWTA2HEE

BIAEENEEERNATEE-

(b) At 31 December 2021, JA/ b JHRI% & B BR A A (Hebei Xu Yuan Investment (b) R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 " BE2BRLQ
Company Limited?), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Wingold AIMEE2ENBARTILIBRIRERR R
Limited, and Beiren Group held direct equity interest of 16.05% (2020: AIRILAEEDRIFH6. 05/» 7237%@
16.05%) and 73.95% (2020: 73.95%) in Beiguo respectively. Among the F:16.05%) 273.95% (=T =F @ :
seven directors (2020: seven) in Beiguo, two (2020: two) directors were the 73. 95%)i|:. E’JET& AR At - Eil:. &3
representatives of the Group. The Group does not participate in the TFLRB)EFTEP WA
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within S ¢ Fﬁ%)§$ﬁzﬁ%.mﬁ§
Beiguo. $E@IT//\E5§:{E.WL§§ EH A

BIE -

(o) At 31 December 2021, the Group's 60% (2020: 60%) owned subsidiary, () ﬁ/\\_%_*iﬁL A=+—8" $§.Hﬁ
Ample Sun Group Limited, held direct equity interest of 49% (2020: 49%) in 60% (=TT 60%) Ezm 2 B A
Future Mall. In addition, 51% (2020: 51%) equity interest of Future Mall was REEERA Tiﬁﬁ%%Tﬁiﬁ49%(_ Z
being directly held by Beiguo. The Group does not participate in the —BF: 49%)ET§HXZK%/\ o WA - KR
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within E551% (ZF =T : 51%) RAE B
Future Mall. HEERE  c AEEWF2HERERTE

SNEEERNETEE-
" The English name is translated for identification purpose only A B TR AEE - 2R
FIBEPEKEARLE —E-—FFR8K 127
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Investments in associates (continued)

The financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set

17 RBEQXFNRE (FH)

BRAAREEBRENRZHMBERDT

out below:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARBTT
Total assets BEEEE 13,782,351 13,632,299
Total liabilities B 8,559,971 8,829,240
Net assets EEFE 5,222,380 4,803,059
Group's share of associates’ net assets REEEEBEAREEFE 3,095,104 2,876,956
Revenue WA 7,608,492 7,551,051
Profit and total comprehensive income REL RN R 2E W= EEE
for the year 454,157 465,280
Group's share of profit and total REEREBERTAFE
comprehensive income of associates N & 2 E s 4R R
for the year 237,251 221,879
Summarised financial information of material associates EXBERNRAZHBERBE
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material FHEAEESERBE AR 2 MBERME

associate is set out below. The summarised financial information

below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial

statements prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies

in conformity with those adopted by the Group.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group and it is

accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated

financial statements. The Group's equity interests in the Beiren

Group are held via certain partially owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Beiren Group

The principal activities of the Beiren Group are the operation of

department stores and supermarkets in the PRC. It was also

engaged in auto trading business and sales were made to three PRC

companies (“the Debtors”) in prior years. The ultimate beneficial

owner of the Debtors has provided personal guarantees over the

Debtors’ outstanding amounts owing to the Beiren Group (the
"Guarantor”). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Debtors defaulted on settlement of trade balances due to the

Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”) and the Beiren Group has

ceased trading with the Debtors and the entire auto trading

business since July 2019. Legal actions have been taken by the

Beiren Group to recover the outstanding Trade Receivables.

BT o AT B ERE S0

BlzMBHREIN 2 BRREANE

B —HHEBRER -

EAEBRAEEE -ERANBHEQT

ERAEDENES

MBBRALR - K&

BRI ASBHERTEBE T AEERF
BRD RN B A BRE ©

I AEH

EARETEEBRARTELEEEER
BH - TRBEBFEREIEESXE
% Ym=fAPEQE ([EHADETH

B EBAZRRER

BHBEAEHREBA

Py
TN

REZEIAEEZ FRERBEAER(E
RAD - HZE—ZE—HhhF+=-A=+—8
HFE BEBARBEEXRFNIEAEERZ
B ([BWERDEEAZELD LA
SEE-ZT-NFLtABREFELETHEBA
NG REBERERAIEESER - JLAEER
EREEITENB AT % FE IR 3K -

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

17

FRTERERRAF

Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)

Beiren Group (continued)

Meanwhile, the Group became aware from public sources that the
Guarantor has been detained by the relevant local authority in
Hebei province in relation to alleged illegal activities in one of his
businesses. Based on public notices issued by the local authority in
Hebei, the Group noted that all companies (including the Debtors)
and assets which are located in Hebei Province that are directly or
indirectly owned by the Guarantor have been seized by the local
authority pending further investigations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, after obtaining an
understanding from management of the Beiren Group in respect of
the actions taken to recover the Trade Receivables from the Debtors
and taking into consideration advices from the Group’s external
legal advisers, the Group had concluded the likelihood of
recovering any amount from the Debtors or the Guarantor as
remote and made a loss allowance of expected credit loss, net of
deferred tax credit, against the full amount of overdue Trade
Receivables due from the Debtors (“Full Impairment”) for the
purpose of recognising the share of results of the Beiren Group as at
31 December 2019.

The impact of this Full Impairment on the Group's share of losses of
associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to non-
controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively, while its impact on the Group's carrying value of
the investments in associates, equity attributable to owners of the
Company and the non- controlling interests as at that date
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively.

To date, the Group understood from management of the Beiren
Group that there has not been any progress made regarding their
legal actions taken against the Debtors as the criminal case against
the Guarantor taken by the relevant authority is still pending.
Management of the Beiren Group has been maintaining regular
contact with the relevant local authority regularly to follow up the
development of the case against the Debtors, however, there has
not been any concrete reply from the authority. The Guarantor was
still being detained by the relevant local authority and there has
been no additional information or development in relation to the
recoverability of the Trade Receivables due from the Debtors. As
such, there has not been any progress made in terms of recovering
the outstanding trade receivables nor able to obtain any further
financial information of the Debtors and the Guarantor. As at 31
December 2021, the Group considered that the Full Impairment
remained the best estimate based on the information currently
available.

“E--FER

17

REEQTNERE (K)
EAME AR Z M EREE (H)

IAEE (&)

R AEBERARRBEAERARYS
WMEELZEMEP—EAXBHPREIREE
BmMsoitE BRE RE - RiFAILAE
ERBMHOAE  ARBHMEBRERALNR
HEHERSIREEAENZ AR (BIEED
AN) REEEEBREM DAL RDEIEE—
HERE -

RBE-_F-NAF+_A=1t—HLHF
B RTHRIEASEEERBHILEBAK
Ol Y AR R IR 1T 8 W E BAKE
SMERERERMNEBRE ARERARE
BARERAMBFIRA AT EIERE - &
RN _E-NF+-A=1+—BEMHI
AEBZEE  ARERLHERA RS
RUSERBEER I BBEEBRIRE
ERE (HRREERRES) ([2FRME]) -

PHEREHAEBRBE_T—hF+=A
—t+—HILEFEREBERARGE #E
ANEIEEERIFEREREEEENZE
DRIBARERIABE T ARME4874
BETEAREIICS0EET  MAHARE
ERZAYBERRNREREEE A
NEVEA AERER AR IS
ZoRAANREI24BETT - ARM4874
BEILTMARKIZB0EET

BEHR AKEBLASEEEERS
A BRARERYHERANMELFD
HEFRIED  FARIEARBEHEBAELETZ
FRITHARATAER - EAKEEEE
—HERBREBEBART ZBEREHEERH
ERRIEERE EREKINERTMNELZD
E o BRADAARLT #FIRE - sE
Yo B 75 A B MK B K 9 mT K (B 14 7 D I 4R R
SNEM S ERER - Fit - pHEREE
YRR KR ERIF B IS A R IER AT —
THBEEM LY BEMER - R T ——
FTZA=1+—8 ERBAIAENER
T AEERRE2BEREDAKEMRE -
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Investments in associates (continued) 17 REERRNKRE (E)
Summarised financial information of material associates EXBERRZHBERBE (&)
(continued)
Beiren Group (continued) IEAEE ()
The Company will continue, wherever possible and practicable, to RATIBEEEARERAIITZERT R
implement the measures and/or actions to monitor the SR RITEAERFEERE - 215
development of the situation, including but not limited to regular BERRREREIAEBENEBRE KA
communication with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group and SEETHBAEER NHEILASEE
the designation of the Group's Chief Financial Officer to work BERYEME - REE TG EAEZERAA]
closely with management of the Beiren Group. The Group will also [EHEFHEILASENRRENEZRE
communicate with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group, which HEITER RIREETHEER U&KE
holds 51% equity interest in the Beiren Group at the holding WA E TR AR BRERAERBERR
company level, to explore and consider different options to BE-
minimize any loss and damage to both of us as shareholders of the
Beiren Group.
2021 2020
—E--F g 52
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARETTT
Current assets mBEE 6,267,079 5,793,669
Non-current assets FERBEE 7,503,413 7,828,602
Current liabilities mERIE 8,454,786 8,724,037
Non-current liabilities EnEatE 103,784 102,642
Net assets BEFE 5,211,922 4,795,592
Net assets attributable to owner HWAEAELZEETE 4,439,502 4,152,139
Non-controlling interests JEVE N = 772,420 643,453
2021 2020
—EC--F —T-TF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBTFTT
Revenue WA 7,569,462 7,512,022
Profit and total comprehensive income N2 M) Ko A 2 T W R
for the year (note) (B 5E) 451,167 465,715
Group's share of profit and other AEEEGILASBEARFT SR
comprehensive income of Beiren Group IR H A 2 E A
for the year 235,755 222,096
Dividend declared from Beiren Group to RENLAEBHARER 2
the Group during the year Tk E 19,103 98,365
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17 Investments in associates (continued) 17 REEQRTNKRE (E)
Summarised financial information of material associates EABEQAT 2 BERYE (F)
(continued)

:lbx(%@(ﬁé’)
Z*/\EM‘ME%%#%E YR Bl SE

Beiren Group (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Beiren NEIEm o REERE MM EERE
Group which recognised in the consolidated financial statements: K
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable to  # B AEGILASB 2 EE
owners FE 4,439,502 4,152,139
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership AN & Bl dE A S BlIR L I B #
interest in Beiren Group WA 49% 49%
2,175,356 2,034,548
Add: Further interest of Beiren Group's o AREEE MM E AR
certain subsidiaries directly held by the BEERBBZIAEEET
Group's other subsidiaries ME AR — PR 914,517 838,673
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ~ REBNIL ASEE S 2
Beiren Group BREE 3,089,873 2,873,221

Information of an associate that is not individually material

BRIFERZHEQATNESR

2021 2020
—E- BT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET AREBF T
The Group's share of profit/(loss) and other 7N B fE 1§ 55 7], (&5 18)
comprehensive income/expense R E 2 E s B 1,496 (217)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in S B R aZ Bt = 2 Al 2=
this associate ZEREE 5,231 3,735
18 Investment in a joint venture 18

R—BEELENRKRE
R-E-—GR-T-BF+-A=+—

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had interest in the = -
B AEESATIAELE R -

following joint venture:

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
establis} t/ d capital held Proportion of
Name of entity Form of business structure operation by the Group voting power held Principal activities
AEEFFERT
HEEHE EBEBERX BRI/ i B FR A E{ELLL 61 iR ERLL A TEER
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza  Sino-foreign equity joint venture PRC 50% 50% Property holding and leasing
Co., Ltd.A
PENBETESERARA PIGEARERE HE 50% 50% MEBELEE
" The English name is translated for identification purpose only N BXZBEREZE  EHBR
FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§ 131
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Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18 R—EEELENRE (&)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of BELERESSHAEANR
accounting:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint —HEEREIFLIMRE
venture Z KA 372,082 372,082
Share of post-acquisition losses and other B IEEZ 2 BEREM2E
comprehensive expenses, net of Fx - MRS
dividends (37) (913)
372,045 371,169

The summarised financial information related to the Group's interest

in the joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's

financial statements prepared in accordance with uniform

accounting policies in conformity with those adopted by the Group.

ERASKERAECE RE 2 HBER
BURT c L THBEMBERRAED
E2UBHRREN Z2H  RRBEARE

B e BERRR -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETZTHF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR¥ETF T
Non-current assets ERBEE 872,017 925,267
Current assets MEEE 105,811 57,577
Current liabilities mEAE 233,739 240,506
Net assets BEFE 744,089 742,338
The above amounts of assets and liabilities FillEEMEBELBERIENT
include the followings: HHE ¢
Cash and cash equivalents BeNReEEY 51,057 23,943
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade R8I & @B E (TR IEEN
and other payables) BR 3% K EoAth FE A~ 5R78) 210,865 219,879
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBETF T
Revenue A 199,799 184,870
Profit for the year ZNES =Rl 56,599 48,421
Dividend income recognised by the Group A& B 2 R 2R EMA
during the year 27,424 31,574
Group's share of profit and other REERLEAEERERMNR
comprehensive income of the joint Hfth 2 Wz
venture 28,300 24,211
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Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18
The above profit and other comprehensive income for the year

includes the following:

R—BeELENKRE (&)
A EARFESH REMEERZBEAT
IHH :

2021 2020

—F--F —TTF

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBFT

Depreciation and amortization e KBk tE 37,191 37,167
Interest income T B2 WA 1,451 1,533
Interest expense FEEH 8,131 9,530
Income tax expense i8R i 22,761 20,424

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the investment in a joint venture recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

bt B R B R AR A AN AR A B 7S R R RERR
R—EABELEMNKREZIRAENK

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETZEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBT T
Net assets of the joint venture BETECEETFE 744,089 742,338
Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest NEBEHBEERLLD 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment AEBREEREMNKE 2
in a joint venture BRHEE 372,045 371,169
Properties under development 19 BEDY=R
2021 2020
—E=-—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBTFT
At 1 January w—HA—H 1,346,322 1,228,242
Additions NE 39,079 118,080
Transfer to property, plant and equipment  EBEY) % - FE L&E
(note 14) (Pf5E14) (87,846) —
Transfer to investment property (note 16) wREREWE (HiE16) (1,297,555) —
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H — 1,346,322

Properties under development comprised two office towers of the
Group's commercial complex development project in Shanghai, the
PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
additions of RMB39,079,000 (2020: RMB118,080,000) to properties
under development, which include eligible capitalised borrowing
costs of RMB18,106,000 (2020: RMB25,702,000). It was transferred to
property, plant and equipment of RMB87,846,000 and investment
property of RMB1,297,555,000 after Shanghai Jiuguang Center
commenced business in November this year.

FIBEPEKEARLE —E-—FFR8K

BRAVEDERAEERTE LELRERT
X¥VREEPMEBEHRARNE - BEZ
E-—F+-_A=Z+-BHLEE AEEH
BERPYENLSEAARE39,079,0007T
(ZZE=Z4F : AR™118,080,0007T) * &
FARE18,106,000 L (ZE—FF : AR
#£25,702,0007) B A& FEREREE K
Ko REGFE+—ALBANPLEEES
% AR¥87,846,000LEREWE - M5
MR % AR #51,297,555,000 0 86 /% = 5%
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134

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

20 EEBEEE (BHRE)

AT RRERBESBIAMBEREBNZD
#r

2021 2020

:g e ﬂi I — 7
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREBFTT
Deferred tax assets IRIEFRIBE = 5,045 3,356
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE (48,085) (31,220)
(43,040) (27,864)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

P AERR  BEEHALERA M
BEREWBENES

Distributable
profits of PRC
subsidiaries,
associates  Accelerated
and a joint tax
venture  depreciation Tax losses Others Total
wH Bt
NGRS
RAKR—E
fEEZ
AAERAE MmMEHBFE BIEEE Hity mat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARBEF T ARBEFT
At 1 January 2020 —T-T4—f—H (20,650) 10913 - — 9,737)
Charged to profit or loss E/\\Té!mﬂﬁ% (F5E9)
(note 9) (10,570) (1,349 — (6,208) (18,127)
At 31 December 2020 RZZTZTHF
+-ZRA=+—H (31,220) 9,564 — (6,208) (27,864)
(Charged)/credited to profit ~ R 182 (1K), FT A
or loss (note 9) (f5E9) (12,038) (4,589) 4,000 (2,549) (15,176)
At 31 December 2021 RNZEBE-—F
+-ZA=+—H (43,258) 4,975 4,000 (8,757) (43,040)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate ranging from 5% to
10% is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation of RMB12,038,000 (2020:
RMB10,570,000) in respect of distributable profit of the PRC entities
amounting of RMB407,596,000 (2020: RMB359,383,000) has been
provided during the year ended 31 December 2021. At the end of
the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was
RMB916,362,000 (2020: RMB847,774,000). No liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a
position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

RIFELEFTE %m aq ENFE—A—
BEXPHMBAR  BERARE—HEA
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁuz& B REU N T 5% =
10%TB$0HE © %E&E*f*fiwL:H
Zt+—HLEFE RPEEEAUS KA
A ARBEL07,596,0007T (CTE-FF: AR
#359,383,0007T) B 1 A R % 12,038,000
TT(ZZE-FF : AR¥10,570,0007T) KIIE
ERIBREAE - RIREEER - B RAR
DR 2 3 I EE A RS 4 2 B AR B HER
AIEEREAE - ﬁ%ﬁ%)\ﬁﬁ%
916,362,0007C (ZE2EZTF AR
847,774,0007T) ° FhIA_EZEE R A RER I
BE AABAREEBRENEFERIEES
BOMER - REBEZBRAETISER
SR S I
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20 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued) 20 EEBEBEBEE (BE)(E)

At 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB651,728,000 (2020: RMB589,649,000) available for
offset against future profits. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses
due to unpredictability of future profit streams of relevant entities.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the group reviewed
previously unrecognised tax losses and determined that it was now
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. As a consequence, a deferred tax asset of
RMB4,000,000 was recognised for these losses. The unrecognised
tax losses arising from subsidiaries operated in the PRC will expire as

R_EBE-—F+-A=+—H A£EEHE
RE AR IBEE L B ARE651,728,0007T
(ZZT =T F : ARMES89,649,0007T) * 7]
BEEHEB®RES BE_T_TF+=
A=Z+—HBLEFE BN EEEREA%R
FREBEATER - MW ERZEHIBEEIE
BREEHBEEE HE_T-_—F+=
AZ+—HLEFE  AEBEMEARTE
REBIEEE - WETE TR R ER
Fim A Al ARSI B AR B & 18 - At
MZEERRAECHBEBEEARE

follows: 4,000,0007T © 1E /R BIAE & 09 [T 8 A B EE A=
BARERIBEESERN TIFHEA -
Tax losses expiring in HEBEINHRZ2FEH
2021 2020

—EB-—F —TTF

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREF T
2021 R — 144,970
2022 —EoCE 115,106 115,236
2023 —Eo=E 127,754 127,754
2024 —ZT 100,719 100,719
2025 —T_REF 100,932 100,970
2026 b=y o = 207,217 —

651,728 589,649

During the year ended 31 December 2021, approximately
RMB144,970,000 (2020: RMB156,363,000) tax losses expired.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

HE_Z-_—SF+-_A=+—B81LFE"
AANREE144,970,0007T (ZE-FF: AR
#5156,363,0007T) K FLIB EIE 2 2 H -
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21 Trade and other receivables 21 FBEWERM KR H W FKIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R AREFTT
Trade receivables JE UL BR 7K 64,272 64,172
Lease receivables T2 & E W 8 45,968 7,234
110,240 71,406
Less: Loss allowance on expected credit B SIEHEEEE
losses 2 ERE (495) (723)
109,745 70,683
Prepayments FERT FRIE 226 225
Deposits paid [=ANE & 5,349 1,534
Value Added Tax (“VAT") receivable FEMEE T (TH5(ER ) 144,929 114,571
Others Hith 52,742 43,870
203,246 160,200
Less: Loss allowance on expected credit B BEEEBEZBERE
losses (22,253) (22,253)
180,993 137,947
290,738 208,630
Less: Non-current portion B EmENE D (5,349) (1,534)
285,389 207,096

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash and

through debit card or third-party payment platform. Its major trade

receivables arising from third-party payment platform sales are

normally settled in one to two business days and lease receivables

are normally settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged

analysis of trade and lease receivables net of allowance for expected

credit losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period presented

AEERABEEHNTEHETREBER
EMERRRE=ZTNHFEET - K%
ErX2REETRE RN —EMETIE
BRI E =77 5RFEHE R —RR30
AP B THE EUYGRIE - AT BB R
KR E YR (G ERERERRE

(B RIERENREZERZRED

based on invoice date: e
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFTT
0-30 days OHZ=30H 108,232 67,976
31-60 days 31THZE60H 1,133 1,135
61-90 days 61HZE90H 99 712
over 90 days #3890 H 281 860
109,745 70,683
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21 Trade and other receivables (continued) 21 FEWERIRKRHE M ERKRIE (F)
Movement in the provision for expected credit loss on trade EWRSEAHEEBREEZY
receivables

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
At 1 January m—H—H 723 1,068
Reversal of provision for expected credit EHRAEREEEERBERD
loss recognised (228) (345)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—~H 495 723
The fair value of the trade and other receivables approximates to JE Uiz B R R L A R Ml R TR N (B B L BRTE
their carrying values. EHEE -

22 Inventories 22 78

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARBT T

Merchandise held for resale BHEFEEEMm 102,073 69,490

23 Amount due to a joint venture 23 EN—BEELERIE
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the amount due to a joint venture RE-—FR B -_FTF+_A=+—
represented accrued rental and management fee payable to a joint B EBN—EeErEZRIERETIRE
venture. The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and N—FEEECEHENERSE - LKA
repayable on demand. RERA RO RENEREFEE -
Amount due from associates 24 FEWEE RTFIE

24

At 31 December 2021 the amount due from associates represented
dividend receivables from Beiren Group and Beiguo as well as a
loan receivable from Beiguo, which was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2020, the amount due from an associate
represented a dividend receivable and loan receivable from Beiguo,
which was unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

R-E-_—F+-F=+—H EREE
NEIFIBK AL AL E B A fE R S
UERIEBEKER  EAEER &8

KIBRBREFERE -

R-E-_ZTFE+-A=+—H8 ER—MH
Bt i 2 B FRIB K B 4b B A R U iR B I e Uk
BR BEAEER 28 RAREXEE
i o
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25

26

138

Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss 25 ZAFEFABZZEREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT

Financial assets at FVTPL: BRATEFAERZERERE:
— structured investment products —REREREER — 86,500

The balance at 31 December 2020 represented structured
investment products placed with banks in the PRC, with an expected
but not guaranteed return in the range from 1.85% to 2.20% per
annum, depending on the performance of its underlying
investments, which were mainly bonds and debentures. These
financial assets were measured at FVTPL as their contracted terms
did not give rise on specified dates to cash flows that were solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of these
financial assets did not differ materially from their carrying amounts
as at the reporting date because of their short periods to maturity.

Cash and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents comprised mainly
short-term deposits with original maturity within three months and
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.15% to 4.13%
per annum (2020: 0.15% to 4.13% per annum).

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following

26

RIB-_ZE+_A=+—RA2&811=F
RERBENBITZEBEREER  HE
HETMREBEHFEWEENF1.85EE2.20
E - SRTEREEERE (FBAESFRE
EF)NERE - ZeRMEEARAFETA
B RAEAMKERITERNIETBHE
EEAYNASRAEERASHEZRS
MEBE-ARAEERAE BHRZESHE
EREHAEE EAFERARE AR
FAETEERESR -

ReERRSEEY
R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—H BEER
SEBYEEREERRITMSH XS (F
FMENFOISEFLBE) (B -ZTF : F
FENTF0I5EEA1IE) RER=EA
WE| B 2 e HITF 3R -

ReRReFBWUTIEEE :

currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
RMB AR 1,770,586 1,813,077
US Dollars (“US$") EZrx((ZEx)) 78,294 79,075
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") B (AErx)) 9,318 14,755
1,858,198 1,906,907

Lifestyle China Group Limited
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27 Trade and other payables 27 EARIRRHEAMENSRIE
2021 2020
—F--F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Trade payables FETER X 61,244 54,988
Construction payables FET T2 318 429,831 252,850
Concessionaire sales payables B R EAEEE FUE 492,390 492,595
Refundable prepaid card deposits REBN RS 137,215 131,174
Rental deposits received S ERS 180,747 81,908
Accrued expenses B rER 101,741 64,425
VAT payable JEH G (E T I8 9,415 9,783
Interest payables FEASF B 3,147 3,228
Others Hit 46,244 29,592
1,461,974 1,120,543
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables date at the end T ABREBERERREZEARYEMAERER
of the reporting period presented based on invoice date: B RRES AT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT T
0-30 days 0HZE30H 52,572 46,036
31-60 days 31THZE6H 4,955 3,848
61-90 days 61HZE90H 328 969
over 90 days im0 3,389 4,135
61,244 54,988
The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire JE AT BRBR e JE SR BT BB B S BB 2 1T
sales payables is 45 days from invoice date. The Group has financial EERANERE AR c REER
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are B BEAREIREEK - BRPTA ENRIE
paid within the credit timeframe. MMEEBRAZ A -
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28 Bank borrowings 28 WRITEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans and  #R{T{EE B IRITEFAEX
are analysed as: WIRA T 4T
Secured, variable rate and denominated BHEM  FERAARK
in RMB +HE 2,340,000 2,400,000
Carrying amount repayable based on RAEHFREERB B EE
contractual repayment dates: RAREE :
Within one year —FR 100,000 60,000
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRETEBMRE
two years 1,120,000 100,000
More than two years, but not exceeding MEREBTEB=F
three years 1,120,000 1,120,000
More than three years, but not = FRENEBYF
exceeding four years —_ 1,120,000
2,340,000 2,400,000
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : JI| ARBI B ER —F A
under current liabilities B8R 2 FRIE (100,000) (60,000)
Amount due after one year —FBEIH 2 E 2,240,000 2,340,000
The effective interest rate of the borrowings was at 4.41%—4.46% BERERFEBENELL%4.46% (=
(2020: 4.40%—4.46%) per annum. ZEBF 1 4.40%4.46%) °
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no undrawn RIBZ—FRIZFZTFEF_A=+—
borrowing facilities. H - AEEWEKRERRITHE -
For the pledge of assets detail, please refer to note 39. EAEEBRROFE  B2HME39 -
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29 Lease liabilities 29 HEAE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 406,427 573,323
Less: e
Lease payments BERR (115,671) (120,626)
Lease modification BT E (20,853) (71,620)
Interest expense SN 19,025 25,350
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 288,928 406,427
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBT T
With a year —F R 100,521 101,245
More than one year, but not exceeding five —F&ETEBBERF
year 188,407 305,182
288,928 406,427
Lease contracts are typically for fixed period of 10-15 years. HEAHN—MBZAREFH  MF10F=
154 -
In 2021, the cash outflow related to principal elements of lease N2 —F HESAGEsA S LHE
liabilities and finance costs were RMB96,646,000 (2020: KABBENBR:RED I ABAREK
RMB95,276,000) and RMB19,025,000 (2020: RMB25,350,000) 96,646,000 (Z 2T F : AR
respectively. 95,276,0007T) K A K #19,025,0007T (=&

—EF . AR¥25,350,0007T) °
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30

142

Contract liabilities 30 EHNEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETHF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Loyalty points under loyalty reward AR BN EI T 80 R AR R
programmes Bo 10,971 8,288
Unredeemed gift certificates KA &5 1,289 805
12,260 9,093
Loyalty points under loyalty reward
programmes
BHRBFEATHIABRBES
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTT
Revenue recognised out of the contract FHNEHNaBERRERZHA
liabilities at the beginning of the year 9,093 8,830

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

(a) Loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes
Under the Group's customer loyalty reward programmes,
customers who participate in the loyalty programmes can earn
one reward point for every dollar of their spending. For every
5,000 points earned from cosmetic products and every 10,000
points earned from non-cosmetic products, customers can
redeem gift certificates with face value of RMB250 and RMB50
respectively, which can be redeemed for goods or services
offered at the department stores. Rewards points earned has
an expiry period of one year.

(b) Unredeemed gift certificates

The Group sells gift certificates to customers who redeems
them for goods and services offered at the department
stores. The gift certificates are non-refundable and valid for
one year from the date of issue.

The Group applied the practical expedient and does not disclose
the information relating to the remaining performance obligations
that have original expected duration of one year or less.

HAMERSHNABES BB EN —RN
BIGHAT

BHEBGETHNAAERES
RAEEZ B EEET 28
BHREFECERARE T2
HESERR —2ES - BRI
6 E G B EY 5,000 K FEE ik
mRE S EHRELEY 10,0005 © AJHRERE
BEn Rl A ANRE2507T M ARES07T
Z2EE AARKEBRAEEEREY
EmAR - I ZED R —F 5
& o

(a)

KA Z1E3%
AEBHERAFTEE mMBAEH
EREesrRBEEER"ZEM
ARTS o ST AR - WREH B
B—FREX -

(b)

AEBEDERERATNEREDE kI
BEREERERRNFHR —FAIAT 26
TROBTEBZER -

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

31

32

33

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of 31 ENHBAR—BFEZERBRERZ
subsidiaries M;IE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the amount was unsecured, non- RIE_ZEFER T - —F+_A=+—
interest bearing and repayable on demand. B ZRXEAERER 2ERAREXRK
BE -
Share capital 32 RAE
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are as follows: RABIRAZEBFHBNOT :
Number of
shares Amount
KRGEE MIE
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each H R E{EO.005/8 JT A & il Ak
Authorised: SEERA
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZZEZTF—-H—QH-
31 December 2021 —ETFA+_A=+—RHK
—FE—F+=ZA=+—H 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRBRRA
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and R-—E-_ZF—HF—H8-
31 December 2021 —EoRES_A=t—HK
—E-_—F+=-A=+—H 1,464,448,500 7,322
RMB'000
AREFTT
Shown in the financial statementsasRMB =~ R _ZE_ZFR T - —4F
at 31 December 2020 and 2021 TZA=t+—BR#IBRE
AARE 275 6,291

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during both years.

Statutory surplus reserve and capital reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation, provided that
such reserve fund is maintained a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital.

The capital reserve represented deemed contribution from Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International”), a former
holding company of the Company in prior years, that certain loan
interest payables were waived by Lifestyle International and not
recharged to the Company and its subsidiaries prior to the listing of
the Company in 2016.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

33

RREFEE - AARHEEMMEARL
BBE  DENBRARRERLHES -

EEBBRLOBERENFHE

RIER BN EIR A M IBRER RAR
HRIE + AR AR BB A WA R B
B FDATE B 15 RSk R R BR B 1 %
ZI0%HBEEEARAESEZHER
EHEMEARM50% < EERBAEST
RIEERBEFENER(NE)  XTE
BEMEBITHRBEL - AIRRREH
B RERBEEMERN25%M L -

EXRRERANBEFENGEREER
RAF(TMBEEERD(ARBZHZERR
A) ZT& - RETRNESRN SEANEE
B#%  WRARBR T —RFELWA
WEEBR T AR RENBEAF -
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34

144

Leases 34
The Group as lessee

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for all leases except

for short-term and low-value leases.

HE

REBEEREEAA
AEBECHAMEHENEREEE
R MR B ETE SRR o

2021 2020
—B-—fF ZEZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT

Minimum lease payments paid for short- MEMREEBEHREDN

term and low-value leases 2 HIEEERIE

Leasehold land and buildings METH RIEF 513 473
Other assets Hitn & E 428 609
941 1,082

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred
RMB47,275,000 (2020: RMB30,483,000) contingent rents which was
based on certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows:

HE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE"
REEREEATE L INHAEES A
ARMEA7,275000 (ZEZFF - AR
30,483,0007T) °

RB|ERR - AEERTARBELEHEE
ZFAERREEEERB(RREEEME
) BRTFIFEHEIH

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E_FTF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBFTT

Within one year —FR 990 702
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZELF (BIEERME) 2,192 494
3,182 1,196

The above commitments represent commitments for leasing
residential properties amounting to RMB2,644,000 (2020:
RMB316,000) and other assets amounting to RMB538,000 (2020:
RMB880,000).

Lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for short-
term and low-value leases of residential properties and other assets
which represented machineries. Rental payables are predetermined
at fixed amounts except for certain lease of which contingent rental
are charged based on certain percentage of sales. Leases are
generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to three years
(2020: one year to three years) and rentals are fixed for terms
ranging from one year to three years (2020: one year to three years).

R EAMEEMEMREAEREIN
AREE2644000 (ZZTEZFF : ARK
316,00000) Rt HMEESZ AR
538,0007T (= =Z 4 : AKKE880,0007T)
S -

HERBEEAEBEREHIEEEHEERE
EMERAEMEE (KR ENF2ES -
MmEMNZzHSBEEBRENEHE KT
—LRBHEREE T B L m IR AR
SOELY - BH—RIREER—==F (=
ToTF—E=F)BE - HEEERES
—EZF(ZT_FF —EZHF)EE-
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34 Leases (continued)

35

36

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with

34 HE (A

AEEAESHAA

R|ERR - AEECEBEFFTLHMN AR

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: =ERBEREBEWT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
Within one year —FR 195,070 59,261
In the second to fifth year inclusive EF_EERF (BREEEMTE) 605,694 62,465
Over five years BilAF 33,580 4,240
834,344 125,966

Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to
eight years.

Capital and other commitments

HHO—BREBERR —EN\FiHn -

35 EARRHEAMEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETTT
Capital and other expenditure in respect of B &I XM ARRERE BB RE
acquisition of property, plant and BREBEEBAYE  BE
equipment and property development BEARYEERIER
project contracted for but not provided ZERREAMF
in the consolidated financial statements 260 598,200

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§
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Financial instruments 37 &@IA
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAER
2021 2020
—E=-—fF —_E_THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBETF T
Financial assets cRMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 25) BAFEFABRZEHEE
(P &E25) — 86,500
Financial assets measured at amortised RHENATFECEREE
cost (including cash and cash (BEReLREFEY)
equivalents) 2,114,646 2,095,398
Financial liabilities cEAasE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised  Z#EK AT E 2 S RIEE
cost 4,053,623 3,920,744

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include bank balances and
cash, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, amount due to a joint venture, bank borrowings
and amount due from associates. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is RMB, in which most of its transactions are
denominated. The functional currency of some subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong is HK$, in which most of the transactions
are denominated.

The Group has certain foreign currency denominated bank balances
at the end of each reporting period and details of which are
disclosed in respective notes.

BB REEER I REE
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37 Financial instruments (continued) 37 &¢®WMIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SRT AEER (#)
Currency risk (continued) E¥E ()

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of US$ and HKS$. The
carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated

AEEXrZEHEXTRETHBEERA

NE|EHK

REBNUINEHER

monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows: MEEREMBENT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Assets BE
uss$ e 78,294 79,075
HK$ BT 9,318 14,755
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging 7N £ B 3R IR 30 A HNES ST R BUR B
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange B2 g B NE [E by IE/\\H‘EEE?%E%‘T

exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 5% (2020: 5%) in exchange rate of US$ and HK$
against RMB, while all other variables are held constant. 5% (2020:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk

R INEE R

TERHANWAEERETLRBTLHARKZ
[EEAEEHIRSR(Z T _FF 1 5%) /2
BE)MATE B MBS TR Y R
[E 5% (ZTE_FF: 5%)7%1% EAB

internally to the key management personnel and represents the N R EE RSN B P 2 BURE - TR E
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in BEHINEERA ST “@JZ.:ME (578

foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only

R ?’Wﬂ%@%ﬂifﬂﬁ9I\”¥§M§f”ﬂ%1§

outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and E WREHRERARZR(ZE_FF
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for a 5% 5%)INEERF B HBME - MAREH
(2020: 5%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive number below BRINE T - BITRMFI 2 EERTEF

indicates an increase in profit for the year where RMB weakens
against the relevant foreign currency. Where RMB strengthens
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the amounts below
would be negative.

RUEFE - MARB L BRER L7
AleHFNRENEERFERR 2EE -
ATERMINBFHREE -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARET T

US$ against RMB ETAARE 2,936 2,965
HK$ against RMB BITAANRE 349 553

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

“E--FER

ERERR - BANFEE 2RI R R

FRER
FEE LB -

R E 3 i AR BB S
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits (2020: fixed-rate bank deposit). The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to the Group's
variable-rate bank borrowings (2020: variable-rate bank borrowings).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowings for construction
purpose) at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably
possible change taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. A 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for variable-rate balances when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The Group's sensitivity to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant after taking into account the impact of the tax
and finance costs capitalised in construction in progress and
properties under development are as follows:

37 €@ IA(E)

ERMIAER (&)

FIE @B

N 62 (B T 5 B B E M) KR TTIF R 2 R R
MERBR(ZE_FF: BEMNERITHE
) ARBEEERSRENERER - T)
ERAAKBEIBHANEXRITER(ZZTF
FOFBNERRITERN) - AEERKILE
EAIFI RGN - A BREESER
MEER - WRFEEEFEZ B HEAN K
[

AEBURSREMNETRBR ZHEE - Ty
RERBERRRITEE

(BB ERTT
ERFREMS) MEXAR  ARREFF

VIR REHRMEE  UREFEFT
o gnMEBEEEABAMERNXER
- SOMEEERL (T T4 : SOMEER) 1
MR RRF R URKEBES
MERAESEZHONE - EMBEEME
BB S REEHBAMRNERTER
BRTPVMEENMCBERANTEER - K
SENSRE PRGN EREBRFZENT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
(Decrease)/increase in post-tax profit FRBRBIEERN CRL), i
for the year
— as a result of increase in interest rate — BRFE EFH (731) —
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — BT R TR 731 —
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEE R A EFFE

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2021 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

RZE-_—F+=-—A=+—H AEER
HF T REBITHAETMERSEREER
CREEDH R EERR  BiRE Y
BRARMLZEEEZREE-
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37 Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has formulated a defined
fixed credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group's retail sales are mainly on cash basis,
either in cash, debit card or third-party payment platform. The
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade receivable balances individually or
based on provision matrix.

For the credit-impaired trade receivables, an reversal of impairment
loss of RMB228,000 (2020: RMB345,000) was made during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The following table shows the movement
in loss allowance that has been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach.

37

e@IA (#)

T EER (F)

=B AR R EE TS ()

JEH SR

SEERKEERR  NEECHERE
MEEERBRERZE-—HAR HEE
EEERSE HEREERIETHMES
B NEREREERBNELE 2EN
EH- AEE2TEHETERTASE

DB CRFRIE=ZITARFEE
17 REERNEREEYBREEREINR

% REFEHMEEBEREN - HEKER
EERERETRENE  ABRBERES
ERETTRERE o

REERERKERME EREZE_Z
——F+_A=+—BLFEELARE
228,0007T (ZE =FF : ARM345,0007T)
ZREEERE - TRV REBELEES
APEWRRER 2 BREEZE -

Life-time ECL

(credit Impaired)

KAHHBEEER

(BEERE)

RMB’000

ARBFT

As at 1 January 2020 under HKFRS 9 N_T_TF-A—BRBEEBUBHERELDNEIR 1,068

— change in expected credit losses —EHEEBEEZS (345)

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZF-_TF+_HA=1—~H 723

— change in expected credit losses — EHEEEEY (228)

As at 31 December 2021 RZEBZ—F+-_HA=+—H 495

Other receivables H it JEY K IE

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group performs ERAAEEEERRER 2 —HH K&

impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group assessed the 12-month ECL for other
receivables individually as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 and
considered that impairment allowance on other receivables (not
credit impaired) to be insignificant and thus negligible to be
provided by the Group based on the low probability of default on
those counterparties based on historical credit loss experience. The
management has also assessed all available forward looking
information, including but not limited to the economic outlook of
the PRC and subsequent settlement of the debtors, and concluded
that the credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding other
receivables is insignificant.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

EEREATEMBREENEIRR 1]
BRBEEBERAETRAENMN A&
lﬁﬁfg:—i&—§:§¢+—ﬂ
=+—BzHEMmEKRR 1I%U.%1ﬁ+—

BEABREERR 3 wﬁbﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁl
(A EEERE) ZRERBLTEK - ﬁt
DERELEEBERLR ZFHTFHE

HFREMEAD K - Ft AR ERE 2 TEHE
EEBITAEKN - BEREMETEMAER
FZATEEER - BIEETRAFE 2L
BRI = L/(&{fij\ﬁféz H' R A
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Time deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with credit ratings of B or above assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance
for credit losses is provided.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of the amounts
due from associates. The Group monitors the credibility of
associates continuously. After taking into account of their financial
position, past experience and other factors, the Group considers the
risks associated with amounts due from associates are minimal.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
unutilised borrowing facilities. Details of bank borrowings are set out
in note 28.

Based on the above, the management of the Company considers
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk and it will be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

37

S@MI A (#)

SRITAEER (&)

1= BB e R Al B 7T 1S ()

TR RIRITAET7

HREF I AERREETREERT
BRI EEEFK 2T WABHES
ZEERBER HE_T-_—FK=F
ZEF+ A=+ —BLFE AEEY
RITHEFETREN S SRAEF IR
TTEAMAEETR AT EREEER
EiE R o

REBER RIS E M EKKRIRLEE

AREFEERR  RRIBRBREZHEFH
REP -

B A e B R B BROR $’§I7E’§EPE’]
EERR ﬁ‘ilﬁia REERAM(E

R BB BEARE

Elﬁﬁl% AEBRRE BRI Z R F
RIAZ BBRE o
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MERDTE BEEERBITEEZE
A BIRETEREE -

REBERERITEEEREENRDES
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37 Financial instruments (continued) 37 &¢®WMIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SRT AEER (#)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEELEE ()
In addition, the following table details the Group’s remaining B TREAFAEEETESREBES
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The TEREHPE - TRIVRBAREET B
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash ERBRHFAE  NemaE I
flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on which the RBERELRBEY - TREFHIFER
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and reREME
principal cash flows:
Weighted
average
effective  On demand/ Total
interest less than 1to 3 months to 1to  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
mELY REX/-f FRRRER
BERAE AUAR  -E=@R =@AZ-F —-BRf B4E RHE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT ARETR ARETR ARBTT  ARETT
31 December 2021 —Bo-%t-fA=t-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities EiTELREE
Trade and other payables RS EL N — 1,350,818 — — — 1,350,818 1,350,818
Amount due to a non-controlling ERMEAR—BHFERRER
shareholder of subsidiaries 3B — 26,142 — — — 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate RITEE— FEFX 4.41-4.46 — 25,445 182,185 2,336,236 2,543,866 2,340,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER—FAELERE — 47,735 — — — 47,735 47,735
Lease liabilities HEAR 490 9,557 19,113 86,009 200,688 315,367 288,928
1,434,252 44,558 268,194 2,536,924 4,283,928 4,053,623
31 December 2020 —E-FF+-A=1-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTESBERE
Trade and other payables PR BR R E A JE 5 508 — 1,054,948 — — — 1,054,948 1,054,948
Amount due to a non-controlling ERNBAR—REERRR
shareholder of subsidiaries ZHE — 26,142 — — — 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate BARE —FH% 4.40-4.46 — 26,098 138,521 2,566,194 2,730,813 2,400,000
Amount due to a joint venture ERf-HaELENE — 33,227 — — — 33,227 33,221
Lease liabilities HERR 490 9928 19,856 89,354 454,152 573,290 406,427
1,124,245 45954 227,875 3,020,346 4,418,420 3,920,744
The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments i) F B IR G B B IR H BARE E 2 FI=
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes et AR EXRIFITESRMABEZED
in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates METEBEZSBOELELE -
determined at the end of the reporting period.
Price risk B E R
The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at REBLEREATFEFABZZSREER
the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to MERKUATERTZ - Bt AEEE
price risk. The management manages this exposure by maintaining HERRER EEERAFETRARRE
a portfolio of structured investment products with different risk BREBHREEREEREEZER -
profiles. Details of the financial assets at FVTPL are set out in note NERATEFABR @REENFIFH
25. TR RE25
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRMIAZAFEFE
As at 31 December 2021, the management of the Company RZBZ—F+ZA=+—H ARAF
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial BERR/NERA VTR TR ARG
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial ENeHEERSREBENRAEEMEA
statements approximate to their fair values. NFERE -
ARGEREARLT —S-—F5R 151
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37 Financial instruments (continued) 37 &¢®WMIA(E)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued) EMITEZAFEE (&)
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at REEETHEREEESERE BRE
the end of each reporting period. The following table gives BRATEANEZ - TRIBERABOAREE
information about how the fair values of these financial assets are e EENATE(CERGEREME
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs R ALE) WEER -
used).
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
SREE AFER APESRERE HESEZNIEBANSE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—EC--f —ZCEE
+ZA=Zt+-B |TZA=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Financial assets at FVTPL
BROTEAABRZEMEE
Structured investment products - 86,500 Level3 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on expected
return, discounted at a rate that reflects the risk of underlying investments.
FRLEREER - 86500 ZH= BRELRE  ERHHERERBERRERBINEER B ARR S
E -
38 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 38 HEAEEZHELNAEYHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRAJAKSEKEMETHEENAS
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 23 aEReRIReEH HEITH
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EENBEESECINEREREGFERS
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the Group's RERPLOHEAREZHZRERE -
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.
Amount due to a
non-controlling
Bank Interest Lease  shareholder of
borrowings payables liabilities subsidiaries Total
ENHELR
RITEE ERFE HESE FERRRYE wE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT AREFT
At 1 January 2020 RZZZZF—-F—H 2,430,000 3278 573,323 26,142 3,032,743
Capitalised borrowing cost EREMEERK — 108,492 — — 108,492
Interests on lease liabilities REAEME — — 25,350 — 25,350
Lease modification EAIRERH - - (71,620) — (71,620)
Financing cash outflow REEHRDIRL (30,000) (108,542) (120,626) — (259,168)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZF
+-A=+—-H 2,400,000 3228 406,427 26,142 2,835,797
At 1 January 2021 R-ZT=-—%—A—H 2,400,000 3,228 406,427 26,142 2,835,797
Capitalised borrowing cost BERLBEERAR — 97,003 — — 97,003
Interests on lease liabilities HEGEFR — — 19,025 — 19,025
Lease modification BV — — (20,853) — (20,853)
Financing cash outflow RAZDHRLR (60,000) (97,053) (115,671) — (272,724)
At 31 December 2021 R-F-—-%
+ZA=+—~ 2,340,000 3,178 288,928 26,142 2,658,248
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39

40

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant
and equipment in the PRC with a book value of approximately
RMB3,936 million (2020: RMB3,382 million) and (i) right-of-use assets
in the PRC with a book value of approximately RMB1,671 million
(2020: RMB1,721 million); and (i) investment property in the PRC
with a book value of RMB1,292 million (2020: property under
development of RMB1,346 million) were pledged to secure bank
loan facilities of approximately RMB2,340 million (2020: RMB2,400

million).

Related party disclosure

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties:

(a) Transactions
During the year, the Group had entered into the following
significant transactions with the following related parties.

39

40

EEERKF
R-ZE-_—F+-"A=+—8 A&£ED
KHREETORRPREIZWE  BE &R
#H BEEEENARAREIBESET(Z
T -THF: AR¥E3IZEETT) (IR
FREZEREEE  REEENAARE
167TEEBTT(ZE-_ZF : ARBK17218H
BT)  RNMAFRREZIREYE - IREE
BEAARKI2V2EETL(ZZE_SF « %
EhmERARE1346BETT) (ERER

TERBENARE234M0BET(ZF
—ZTF ARB240E5ET) ©

BEATHEE
%B?Aﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬂfﬁ*%*
B2 REATETU TR

REE

(a) X5
FR - RNEBHETHREEATEST
THERR S

(b)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Nature of related party transactions: BEA TR HHIME :
Variable lease payment expenses INT—HEELEZAE
and management fee to a joint HENFHAXLRERESE
venture 80,732 65,564
Repayment of lease liabilities to a m—RaBErEEEHNERE
joint venture (including principal (BERE RFEFBM)
and interest elements) 114,679 114,679
Interest income from amount due KEEK—HEEERERIEA
from a joint venture ZHBHA 459 575
Rental expenses and management  RE —EEZE QARMNHESMAX
fee from an associate LEBE 5,258 6,553
Compensation of key management personnel (b)y EEEBASHM
The remuneration of the executive director, being the key HITESIERFEEBEABZHM
management personnel, was determined by the remuneration EHARRAFME & &R EEAR

committee of the Company having regard to the performance

of the individuals and market. Details of which together with

the other four (2020: four) highest paid employees are

disclosed in note 11 above.

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

MGREMETE - EHFMER E A
NMEZ(ZE-EF UR) ZxmH
EEFBER XM -
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41

154

Retirement benefits schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). Both the
Group and the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
for the MPF ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is required to
contribute and recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group
with respect to these schemes are to make the specified
contributions and recognise the respective retirement pay in
accordance with terms set out in the schemes and relevant
jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above
mentioned schemes during the year amounted to approximately
RMB8.0 million (2020: RMB7.1 million).

41
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42 FEMBAFFE
F_7:—¢&:§:§¢+:HE+—

CARRZEBEMBRRFELT

42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) HEBRAAN—MKER
Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment and operation registered capital equity interest of the Group Principal activities
GUEAVE £ EPVES
ARER e AH BRORRS/ AR AEEEGER TEXR
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E--F “3I%F “E--F “ICTF
Ample Sun Group Limited (" Ample Sun”) Hong Kong HK$62,050,000 HK$62,050,000 60% 0% Investment holding
17 August 2007
EREEERAA(ER]) ¥ 62,050,000 ¢ 62,050,000/ T2 60% 0% BERER
ZETLENATLA
Lifestyle Plaza (Dalian) Co., Limited*" PRC US$45,000,000 15$45,000,000 100% 100%  Retaling business
9 October 1993
HEBR(KE) BRAT 7 45,000,000%7 45000000 T 100% 0% FEEH
“MAZETANE
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co,, Limited** PRC RMB1,034,493,200 RMB1,015,191,100 100% 100%  Retaling business
1 March 2007
HERS (M) ARAT i AR#1,034493,2007 | ARF1,015,1911007 100% 0% FEXH
“ERLE-R-A
LiYi Da Commercial and Real Estate (Shanghal) PRC PRC RMB2,825,471,617.60 RMB2,683,903 967 100% 100%  Retaling business and
Company Limited** 23 April 2012 property development
(2020: Property
development
HiaEBRER (L8 ERAF oE ARB2825411,617.607 | ARH2683903977C 100% 0% FEXRRNEER
“T-Z#MAZ1=H (2225 NR%E)
Shanghai Li Hai Chao Commercial Company Limited**A ~ PRC RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retaling business
31 March 2012
LEHEEERARAT i AR#150000007 | AR®150000007 100% 00 FEEH
“E-CEZA=t-R
Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited* PRC US$12,000,000 1S§12,000,000 65% 65%  Retailing business
("Shanghai Ongoing”) 26 July 2004
FEARRRRRRA ([ LEAR)) HE 12,000,000% 72 12000000570 65% 0% TERXK
ZRRMELAZTRA
Shenyang Chuk Yuen Company Limited**/ PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100%  Retaling business
1 December 2006
BRSEERARAT & ARBT00903927 | ARHTI00903927T 100% 0% FEEH
ZERRETCA-H
Wingold Limited ("Wingold") Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
) 20 April 2007
REERDA(EE) 10,000%7 10000787 60% 0% RARK
“RELEMACTE
* a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. * RABEKYL 2 PINGERE -
** wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC. * RPBKSL 2 ZINERE -
: The English name is translated for identification purpose only : BXEEERBE  EHER
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding RRERE SR BHENEAAAE
at the end of both reporting periods. ERIREEEBHES
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, P RINEESTRREEZER
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or SEEENEEZARBNNER
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries Al EERR - REHMHELRE
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of HegyFEak -
excessive length.
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

156

(b)

42 FEWBARFHE (E)

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEERFERERNIZEMNES
material non-controlling interests ARFE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEBEERFEREROAE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling B2 EMBARINFE
interests:
Proportion of ownership interest
Name of Place of incorporation and and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
company principal place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FEREZCHERE
DRER RUBERETELRBE RAFR R DETFEREHENER REFFERES
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—BC-F i 22 —B--F —R-FF —BC-F it S
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFT AR%TR ARBFT
Wingold Hong Kong 40% 40% 81,082 81,479 1,069,405 988,323
b n )
Shanghai PRC 35% 35% 87,738 76,067 141,658 130,149
Ongoing
EEAR B
Ample Sun Hong Kong 40% 40% 12,362 11,273 234,226 221,864
@R B
181,182 168,819 1,445,289 1,340,336

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

ERAEERBEERNFERERZ
M AR HHEREERIIT -
NTEINZHBERBREREEA
ARER AT S -

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z — T —_—F +_A=+—HIFE

42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 42 FEWEB QTS (E)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEERFEREZNIEZENES
material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIWFE (E)
(i)  Wingold Limited (i) ELERARAE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTr AREFTT
Current assets MEEE 192,466 173,375
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,511,960 2,328,347
Current liabilities nBEE 4,873 4,873
Non-current liabilities ERHEE 26,042 26,042
Equity attributable to owners ~ RNA T B AEG R
of the Company 1,604,106 1,482,484
Non-controlling interests JEVE R 1,069,405 988,323
Income ON 202,716 208,581
Expenses 53 10 4,883
Profit and total comprehensive 7N &t FIl )2 2 T Y a5 48 58
income for the year 202,706 203,698
Profit and total comprehensive A2 &1#EA A EAE & F 2 2
income attributable to W 4B EE
owners of the Company 121,624 122,219
Profit and total comprehensive 3FERK#E & FE (SR A 2 2
income attributable to the W 4B EE
non-controlling interests 81,082 81,479
Profit and total comprehensive 2N [ )i F1| )2 2 H W #= 48 58
income for the year 202,706 203,698
Net cash inflow from KRR FTEEMNIRERA
operating activities AR — 20,246
Net cash inflow from investing & & /EBIFTEARRESRA
activities FRE — 3,710
Net cash outflow from MEEZHFEEMNRSRE
financing activities HE8 — (34,536)
Net cash outflow e Rt #5E — (10,580)

FIBEPEKEARLE —E-—FFR8K
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)
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(b)

(ii)

42

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interests (continued)

TEMEARFEE (&)
(b)
DR ()

BEEAFEZERESNFEZENE

Shanghai Ongoing (i) LEERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Current assets mENEE 974,811 953,015
Non-current assets IERBEE 318,989 439,269
Current liabilities mnEaE 688,376 705,062
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 200,687 315,367
Equity attributable to owners of the
Company RARHEB AEIG#ER 263,079 241,706
Non-controlling interests JEVER 141,658 130,149
Income WA 1,034,236 909,991
Expenses 53 783,557 692,658
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year REZRMEEEW=LEEE 250,679 217,333
Profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of ~ ANAEHEA AE(TEF R EE
the Company a4 gE 162,941 141,266
Profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to the non- JEEREREGEN 2R
controlling interests W5 ha%a 87,738 76,067
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year AREZRANE2EKEEE 250,679 217,333
Net cash inflow from operating KEEHMEENESRA
activities JERR 308,435 287,815
Net cash inflow from investing BEFZMEEMES KA
activities FRE 17,990 24,231
Net cash outflow from financing MEEEIEENR SR
activities FER (317,695) (376,674)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BERAGrd) 35 8,730 (64,628)
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 42
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has

(b)

TEMBEREFHE (&)
b) EEEAFEREROEZENE

material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIWFE (E)
(i) Ample Sun (i) R
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBFT
Current assets MEEE 9,566 11,552
Non-current assets EREEE 578,229 545,190
Current liabilities mENBE 2,229 2,082
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ANA BB AEG =
Company 351,340 332,796
Non-controlling interests IR IE 2 234,226 221,864
Income A 33,032 30,179
Expenses 53 2,127 1,996
Profit and total comprehensive REE N N 2 e 45
income for the year 30,905 28,183
Profit and total comprehensive RARHEBAEE M EEE
income attributable to owners of e 4B 58
the Company 18,543 16,910
Profit and total comprehensive EERERE(EN R E2E
income attributable to the non- e 4B 58
controlling interests 12,362 11,273
Profit and total comprehensive REE N N 2 W s 485
income for the year 30,905 28,183
Net cash outflow from operating KRB MEENR SN
activities PR (8) (12)
Net cash inflow from investing RERSAEENRESRA
activities HER — —
Net cash outflow from financing BB EBEEMERE SR
activities FH — —
Net cash outflow &M FEE (8) (12)

FIBEPEKEARLE —E-—FFR8K
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43 Statement of financial position and reserves of 43

160

the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

AT BT E

R|EHR - ARBFBMRREZER B -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R AREFTT
Non-current assets EMBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN EERNGIE E 6,882,419 6,901,709
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note a) JE U — RSP B A BRI R IE
(Mi3ta) 234,053 238,642
7,116,472 7,140,351
Current assets MENE E
Other receivables H b e U Fh 8 226 225
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note b) FEU — I P B A R IE
(KT &EDb) 37,335 29,290
Cash and cash equivalents B NREEEY 3,680 1,769
41,241 31,284
Current liabilities mEBAaE
Other payables H b &< 5/ IE 12,793 10,681
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) JEAHIT 8 2 R 5B (B 5Ec) 363,603 366,330
Tax payable FE TR R 657 716
377,053 377,727
Net current liabilities mEBEREE (335,812) (346,443)
6,780,660 6,793,908
Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital % 7 6,291 6,291
Reserves (note d) fE (M aEd) 6,774,369 6,787,617
6,780,660 6,793,908
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43 Statement of financial position and reserves of

—P-—#+t-A=t+-BIFE

43 AR FMBRRERREE (B

the Company (continued)

Movement of the equity of the Company is as follows: RRARWESZEHMT -
Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits Total
R 3EE EOtEE REHEF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT AR®TET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_TF—H—H 6,543,132 480 258,919 6,802,531
Loss and total REEZEEREZEH
comprehensive expenses R
for the year — — (14,914) (14,914)
At 31 December 2020 R _TF
+=—A=+—H 6,543,132 480 244,005 6,787,617
Loss and total FEBBREEZH
comprehensive expenses e
for the year — — (13,248) (13,248)
At 31 December 2021 N —F
+=-—A=+—8H 6,543,132 480 230,757 6,774,369
Notes: B 5
(@) The amounts due from a subsidiary included amount of RMB78,000,000 (@) FE W BT JE8 2 B R E B 3E A R 78,000,000 7T

(2020: RMB78,000,000) and RMB 156,053,000 (2020: RMB160,642,000), which
were unsecured, carried fixed interest of 3.85% (2020: 4.50%) and 4.3% per
annum, and repayable in March 2024 and December 2022 respectively.

(b) The amount due from a subsidiary was unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

(c) The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and

repayable on demand.

(d) The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31 December 2021

consisted of share premium, merger reserve and retained profits of
RMB6,774,369,000 (2020: RMB6,787,617,000).

FliEPEREARLAF —T-—FF§

(ZZ =% : AR¥78,000,0007T) EAR
#156,053,000 (2 - FF : AR
160,642,0007T) * H IR K& 5 Bl bAE £ F
FIE38E(ZE=FF : 45[F) K4 3EF
B UENRRZEZWFE=AR=T ==
FE+ZAEE-

e — MBS A B BRI - 8 R
R|EHRE+ ZEARNERE -

RSB 2 AR AEER « %8 RERE
SRR -

RIZ-——F+-F=+—H  AQAFAH
DIREEOERDEE - & OHHEERRBH
FIANR#6,774,369,000 L (Z T =FTF : A
R#6,787,617,0007T) °
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44

162

Subsequent events

Following the resurgence of COVID-19 infections in certain parts of
China in the second half of the year, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the country, including certain level of restrictions and controls
over the travelling of people and traffic arrangements, quarantine of
certain residents, heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention
requirements in factories and offices and encouraged social
distancing. It remains uncertain when the COVID-19 pandemic will
be completely brought under control in both China and the rest of
the world. At this point in time, the Group is not yet able to quantify
the possible financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
management of the Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 pandemic and perform further
assessment of its financial impact.

The COVID-19 pandemic is a non-adjusting event after the financial
year end and does not result in any adjustments to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

44

®ESE

BEE T4 COVID-19 B2 H h Bl T 4 [
BELR R2ECEEUTBEETHE—F
HI AR RIE S - BIEYHRITERBE
HER—TREORS T - HETE
RETREE - 28 TR EHDEE £
B Esk WHEBRFEREBE-
COVID-19Z 1B I A FR B Je 57 E Ath 30 75
EEZEMATM - B REBHKEE
{ECOVID-19E BRI REM B IS 28 - KEE
EEEEZYEECOVID-19Z 5 1) FHAae %
B WHHEMBSYEETE— PTG -

COVID-19& B AR FERZHZEAES
T rEEHEE_T_—F1+_H
St RLEFEZGAMBERRELER

A
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEETERE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

HE+_A=T—HILFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F e S 22 ZT-NE —E-N\E I
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFI
Revenue WA 1,299,736 1,124,020 1,204,057 1,183,752 1,222,785
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners AREERE AEE
of the Company H#F/(BE) 143,393 212,748 (83,516) 338,074 269,590
Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) BREMN,/(HB)(ARE)
— Basic —HK 0.098 0.145 (0.057) 0222 0.168
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+—-A=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EZ-f “Z-TF “E-NF “E-N\E S 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Total assets BELE 15,032,372 14,589,901 14,424,611 13,744,799 13,051,300
Total liabilities BlEEE 4,252,026 4,058,202 4174702 3,194,851 2,630,052
Net assets BEFE 10,780,346 10,531,699 10,249,909 10,549,948 10,421,248
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,445,289 1,340,336 1,271,151 1,487,679 1,354,395
Net assets attributable to owners ARREE NERL
of the Company BEFE 9,335,057 9,191,363 8,978,758 9,062,269 9,066,853
Net assets per share (RMB) FREEFE(ARY) 7.36 7.19 7.00 7.20 6.50
Net assets per share attributable to FRAHE AEGER
owners of the Company (RMB) EEFE(ARE) 6.37 6.28 613 6.19 5.66
Number of shares issued BETRHHE 1,464,448500 | 1464448500 1464448500 1464448500  1,602,586,500

FIBEPEKEARLE —E-—FFR8K
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Particulars of Major Property

ETEMEFR

Approximate

gross floor area Attributable
(ground and interest to the
Address above) Existing use Group Lease term
BEEEE AE
1 31k (ER L) BEAR PEAL RS HEFH
sg.m.
FITR
Investment property No. 1-2, Lane 2218, 80,003 Office leasing 100% Medium

Gonghexin Road,
Jing'an District,
Shanghai, PRC
wEME PR EETRERE HHERAE H Hf
LR B 221855 1-257
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